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          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Good morning.

          3  Welcome to today's hearing of the Committee on

          4  Transportation. My name is John Liu. I have the

          5  privilege of chairing this Committee.

          6                 First, let me apologize to all of you

          7  for the hold up this morning, but we are going to

          8  start right now.

          9                 Today's agenda is made up of three

         10  items. The first is proposed Resolution No. 76-A,

         11  which the Committee will vote on today. This

         12  Resolution calls on the New York State Legislature

         13  to amend the Public Authority's Law to provide for a

         14  minimum staffing level of one conductor and one

         15  operator for passengers of service trains in the New

         16  York City Transit system on safety-sensitive

         17  situations.

         18                 This minimal staff level would be

         19  required for trains that travel through tunnels,

         20  under a body of water, over a bridge, or when trains

         21  in passenger service consist of more than four cars

         22  are greater than 360 feet in length, or are able to

         23  carry a passenger load of more than 750 persons.

         24                 While there are possible benefits to

         25  installing a computer-based control system that
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          2  could result in more precision and efficiency in the

          3  operation of these trains, the failure of the MTA to

          4  answer questions related to safety underscores the

          5  need for minimum staffing. The MTA would expand this

          6  computer-based train control to all trains if the

          7  system is successful on the Canarsie line.

          8                 As part of the long-term goal, the

          9  MTA reportedly would eliminate conductors on

         10  CBTC-controlled trains.

         11                 Yet, there are many situations where

         12  it would seem more sensible to have one conductor

         13  and one operator on the train.

         14                 These situations include insuring the

         15  safety of track workers, removing any hindrances

         16  blocking the track or doors that could cause delays

         17  and injuries, handling the needs of a sick passenger

         18  and handling any emergency circumstance that would

         19  require an entire train to be evacuated, especially

         20  in an underground water tube or tunnel.

         21                 It's difficult to imagine that the

         22  MTA handling such a situation with only one transit

         23  worker on the train will be effective.

         24                 The MTA has failed to explain how the

         25  system would continue to be as responsive with only
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          2  one transit worker on the train.

          3                 Resolution 796-A asks the State

          4  Legislature to pass Assembly Bill A.0354. This

          5  legislation would require one conductor and one

          6  operator for passenger trains during situations set

          7  forth, as I described before.

          8                 I endorse this resolution and I

          9  encourage my colleagues on this Committee to vote

         10  for it once we call the roll.

         11                 The second on third items on the

         12  agenda, and we have many people to hear from on

         13  these two items, are both aimed at regulating

         14  trucking within the City of New York.

         15                 Intro. 250 and Intro. NO. 306 are

         16  intended to supplement current laws requiring trucks

         17  to adhere to designated truck routes while they are

         18  within the borders of the City of New York.

         19                 It has become a common place and

         20  often illegal practice for truck drivers to deviate

         21  from designated legal truck routes.

         22                 This unauthorized activity has

         23  considerable adverse impact upon residential

         24  neighborhoods. These impacts range from exposing

         25  individuals to toxic pollutants, to accelerating the
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          2  deterioration of street infrastructure. And

          3  certainly that doesn't even start addressing the

          4  concerns of the safety of the pedestrians and people

          5  in the neighborhoods through which these trucks

          6  rumble.

          7                 Intro. No. 250 would impose greater

          8  responsibility and accountability on the owners of

          9  trucks driven within New York City.

         10                 Owners would be required to supply

         11  their drivers with color-coded maps depicting legal

         12  truck routes.

         13                 These maps are to be certified and

         14  notarized by the owners. Penalties would be imposed

         15  upon the owners for non-compliance.

         16                 Additionally, owners would be

         17  required to supply truck drivers with truck routing

         18  sheets upon which the points of origin and

         19  decimation for any trip are to be recorded along

         20  with the date of the trip.

         21                 Truck drivers would be required to

         22  carry the truck routing sheets at all times. Civil

         23  penalties would be imposed upon owners for each

         24  violation of the truck routing sheet requirement.

         25                 Intro. No. 250.  Intro. No. 250 also
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          2  encourages owners to be more accountable for the

          3  actions of their drivers and to make such owners

          4  take a proactive role in policing their drivers.

          5                 Additionally, the requirements

          6  contained in the bill will aid enforcement personnel

          7  in ensuring that drivers of trucks are not straying

          8  from their legal designated routes.

          9                 Intro. No. 306 would designate a

         10  larger percentage of NYPD traffic personnel, traffic

         11  enforcement personnel, for the enforcement of the

         12  Department of Transportation's designated truck

         13  routes.

         14                 Intro. No. 306 requires the Police

         15  Department to train more officers to become

         16  authorized to not only perform the functions of

         17  traffic enforcement agents, but also inspect trucks

         18  and respond to accidents and traffic incidents.

         19                 The bill would also require the

         20  Department to deploy the officers in areas where

         21  non-compliance is found to be prevalent based on

         22  whichever means of study and analysis is selected by

         23  the Department of Transportation.

         24                 It is appropriate to revisit Intro.

         25  250, which was originally heard in 2003, and to also
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          2  examine the merits of Intro. 306, given the

          3  Department of Transportation's delay in completing

          4  its study on the City's truck routes.

          5                 Even though the Department has help

          6  hearing to solicit comments and criticisms of the

          7  truck traffic problem, the Department has missed

          8  several previously amended completion deadlines.

          9                 This report, which would include any

         10  recommendations for future route designations and

         11  compliance is long overdue.

         12                 At this point, I would turn the floor

         13  over to Council Member David Yassky, who is the

         14  prime sponsor of Intro. 306.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Thank you very

         16  much, Chair Liu. And I appreciate your indulgence in

         17  letting me appear here with your Committee, and very

         18  much thank you for your leadership on the issue of

         19  truck traffic in the residential neighborhood.

         20                 The purpose of this bill is quite

         21  simple. We have seen a steady and unacceptable

         22  increase in trucks driving on residential streets,

         23  and I speak here only from my district in

         24  Greenpoint, Downtown Brooklyn. But I know from

         25  talking to my colleagues, our colleagues, that every
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          2  time I raise this with one of our colleagues, they

          3  say that's exactly the same in my area. So I'm

          4  convinced that it is true Citywide. And the purpose

          5  here is to redirect enforcement efforts to the

          6  greatest extent possible so that rather than chase

          7  down every last person that's five feet too close

          8  to, or two feet too close to a curb, and give a

          9  parking ticket, that we focus on the offenses that

         10  do the most damage to quality of life in the

         11  neighborhoods. And I think the truck, off-routes

         12  trucks do that. So, thank you, Chair.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you, Council

         14  Member Yassky.

         15                 Also, Council Member Leroy Comrie is

         16  the prime sponsor of Intro. 250, and he has an

         17  emergency back in Queens, but he did want me to say

         18  on his behalf that he introduced 250 as a means of

         19  supplying an essential weapon in our efforts to

         20  enforce the rules in regulating truck traffic.

         21                 The Department of Transportation has

         22  undertaken an extensive survey, still not complete,

         23  to examine the problems relating to truck traffic.

         24  Council Member Comrie does not need a survey to

         25  recognize the violations occurring in his community
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          2  and neither do most of the people attending this

          3  hearing.

          4                 Noise, air pollution, damage to

          5  roadways and private property and lives,

          6  neighborhoods being literally taken over by trucks

          7  abandoning their designated routes, all of these are

          8  the result of illegal truck traffic and this

          9  Committee has prepared a report that describes the

         10  problem very fully.

         11                 Enforcement is compromised by the

         12  limited number of NYPD traffic enforcement agents,

         13  and we should all be grateful to Council Member

         14  Yassky for his legislation as well to increase the

         15  number of such personnel.

         16                 Under Intro. 250, all owners of

         17  trucks operating within New York City would have to

         18  supply their drivers with color coded maps,

         19  depicting legal routes, and owners would be required

         20  to certify that these maps are accurate or be

         21  subject to fines.

         22                 In addition, truck routing sheets

         23  would have to be given to each driver, giving the

         24  points of origin and destination for the trips they

         25  are taking, those without these routing sheets would
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          2  also be subject to fines.

          3                 The purpose here is to again allow

          4  any police officer at any time to stop a truck and

          5  immediately determine whether that truck is on a

          6  legal route. We currently do not have that

          7  capability. There is much at stake, not only the

          8  quality of life, but the very lives of the residents

          9  of the communities through which these trucks

         10  traffic through.

         11                 There have been too many accidents

         12  and too many lives risked to let the system continue

         13  as it is.

         14                 Now, at this point let me say that

         15  we're joined by members of this Committee, Council

         16  Member Joe Addabbo from Queens, Council Member

         17  Oliver Koppell from the Bronx, and Council Member

         18  Sara Gonzalez from Brooklyn, and I'd also like to

         19  thank the staff of this Committee, Mitchell

         20  Schwartz, the Legislative Counsel and Roberto

         21  Ragone, from the Infrastructure Division, Special

         22  Projects Coordinator, and my Chief of Staff Bill

         23  Hobb, for putting this hearing together.

         24                 Without further ado, let me thank the

         25  representatives of the Bloomberg Administration for
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          2  joining us in today's hearing, and I'd ask to hear,

          3  I suppose, from Deputy Commissioner David Woloch,

          4  and you're also joined by Inspector Leonard Roppa

          5  and John Valles from the NYPD. Thank you, gentlemen,

          6  for joining us.

          7                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: Good

          8  morning, Chairman Liu and members of the

          9  Transportation Committee, Councilman Yassky. My name

         10  is David Woloch, and I am the Deputy Commissioner

         11  for External Affairs at the New York City Department

         12  of Transportation. Thank you for inviting me here

         13  today to testify on Intro. 250, that would require

         14  truck operators operating in New York City to carry

         15  maps of permissible truck routes and routing sheets.

         16                 I commend Chairman Liu and this

         17  Committee for making this issue a priority.

         18  Minimizing the negative impacts of truck traffic on

         19  our residential communities without unduly harming

         20  trucking and commercial activity is an important

         21  goal and one in which DOT has been actively engaged

         22  in.

         23                 The importance of the trucking

         24  industry to the well-being of New York City may not

         25  be overstated. Trucking is vital to the City's
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          2  economic fabric, because 99 percent of the goods

          3  entering the City are brought in by a truck.

          4                 Despite this reliance on trucking for

          5  the movement of goods, it is important that the

          6  negative impacts of off-route trucks to our

          7  communities be minimized.

          8                 These unintended negative

          9  consequences, include increased congestion, noise,

         10  added safety concerns, and excessive pollution.

         11                 In an effort to minimize these

         12  impacts, the City has designed specific routes for

         13  truck use that can be found in Section 4-13 of our

         14  traffic rules.

         15                 These approved truck routes are only

         16  beneficial insofar as they are utilized by truck

         17  traffic.

         18                 This proposed legislation helps to

         19  ensure the use of these truck routes by requiring

         20  the truck operators have information reflecting

         21  where the legal truck routes are located, and by

         22  further requiring that any truck operating within

         23  the City carry a routing sheet containing the points

         24  of origin and destination for each trip made.

         25                 However, while we agree with the
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          2  spirit of the bill, there are certain provisions

          3  that the Corporation's Office has deemed problematic

          4  in relation to enforcement and potential state and

          5  federal preemption issues.

          6                 First, with regard to enforcement.

          7  The bill regulates the operation of trucks within

          8  the City of New York. Therefore violation would be

          9  classified by the vehicle and traffic law as a

         10  traffic infraction; however, the only method of

         11  service prescribed for traffic infractions is

         12  personal service.

         13                 In effect, the bill would be

         14  unenforceable. It would be impossible to serve the

         15  owner of a vehicle with a violation unless he or she

         16  was also the driver of the vehicle.

         17                 The second, Section 1604 of the VTL

         18  prohibits localities from adopting local laws that

         19  prohibit the free use of highways by vehicles.

         20                 Section 1642 of the VTL gives special

         21  authorization to New York City to supersede this

         22  general provision with regard to specified subject

         23  matter.

         24                 The type of regulation contemplated

         25  in Intro. 250 does not appear to fit within any of
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          2  the categories set out in Section 1642.

          3                 Third, Section 385 of the VTL,

          4  prohibits localities from adopting any local laws or

          5  rules that would violate the Surface Transportation

          6  Assistance Act, resulting in a loss of federal

          7  highway aids of the State.

          8                 There is an argument that the

          9  proposed local law would violate the SDAA, and could

         10  result in the denial of much needed federal highway

         11  funds.

         12                 Despite these concerns, DOT is in

         13  support of the underlying premise and agree that

         14  steps should be taken to ensure that vehicle

         15  operators have clear and accurate information about

         16  existing truck routes, and owners are encouraged to

         17  provide operators with either truck route maps or

         18  something of equivalent clarity and

         19  comprehensiveness. For example, the listing of truck

         20  routes found in our traffic rules.

         21                 DOT's support of the proposed

         22  legislation's intent is evident in our truck route

         23  management and community impact reduction study,

         24  which began in 2003.

         25                 As many of you already know, the goal
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          2  of this initiative is to coordinate engineering,

          3  educational, informational and enforcement effort so

          4  that trucks remain on designated truck routes until

          5  reaching the intersection nearest their destination,

          6  and so that they do not inappropriately utilize

          7  residential streets.

          8                 The study has placed an emphasis on

          9  community outreach, as well as outreach to the

         10  trucking industry.

         11                 While our initial hope was to release

         12  the study's recommendations this spring, we now do

         13  not anticipate a release until the end of the year.

         14                 This is attributable to two factors.

         15  First, given the scale and scope of this effort, we

         16  underestimated the length of time required for such

         17  a large undertaking.

         18                 Second, we've expanded the scope of

         19  the study, based on our initial findings, as well as

         20  feedback we have received from communities and

         21  elected officials.

         22                 Products from the study will tackle

         23  the very issues addressed by Intro. 250. We need to

         24  do more to get better truck route maps and

         25  information into the hands of the truckers

                                                            17

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  themselves.

          3                 We are developing a single Citywide

          4  truck route map that will provide detailed routing

          5  and regulatory information on a single fold-out-map.

          6  We will also be enhancing our web-based resources by

          7  consolidating all information for truckers on a

          8  single site, and working with map companies to

          9  improve the information made available on their

         10  products.

         11                 Additional components of the study

         12  will include other education strategies, revisions

         13  of the truck rules themselves, development of a

         14  uniform signage program, and an in-depth analysis of

         15  industrial truck generator locations throughout the

         16  City.

         17                 Based upon our initial findings, DOT

         18  will be expanding the scope of the study to

         19  incorporate several critical components that were

         20  not part of the original scope.

         21                 One of the most central components of

         22  this effort is an analysis of high truck accident

         23  locations, and the development of mitigation

         24  measures at these locations.

         25                 Other new components include
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          2  development of a program to improve over height

          3  signage and more detailed development of educational

          4  and training materials.

          5                 While we are awaiting the final

          6  recommendations of the Citywide truck study, we have

          7  moved ahead over the past year on two major

          8  initiatives to assist in alleviating truck traffic

          9  from residential neighborhoods.

         10                 In Hunts Point we began a program

         11  last July that keeps truck drivers off of parts of

         12  Hunts Point Avenue and Garretson Avenue. In order to

         13  compensate for these changes, we added truck routes

         14  to non-residential streets in the neighborhood.

         15                 In addition, as noted above, a pilot

         16  program launched in 2003 to allow certain smaller

         17  trucks to use a section of the Grand Central

         18  Parkway, from which they were formerly banned, was

         19  passed by the State Legislature and signed into law

         20  last year.

         21                 This change in law reduces the number

         22  of trucks utilizing local streets in Astoria. In

         23  addition, the City, at DOT's urging, whole-heartedly

         24  supported a State bill that was signed into law in

         25  2003, that not only increased the minimum and
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          2  maximum fines for first and repeat violations of the

          3  City's designated system of truck routes, but also

          4  adds points to the licenses and violators.

          5                 This session the City is currently

          6  actively lobbying in Albany on behalf of DOT for a

          7  bill that would require all trucks registered in the

          8  City, having a maximum gross weight of 18,000 pounds

          9  or more, to equipped with a convex mirror on the

         10  front of the vehicle, this additional safety feature

         11  would eliminate a truck driver's blind spot and

         12  allow a truck driver to see any person or object at

         13  least three feet tall and one foot in front of their

         14  vehicle.

         15                 Again, I would like to reiterate our

         16  support of the intent of this legislation, and hope

         17  that we can continue to work together on this issue.

         18                 Thank you for inviting me here today,

         19  and I'll be happy to answer questions.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you, Deputy

         21  Commissioner Woloch.

         22                 I see a statement from Inspector

         23  Roppa. Are you testifying with this statement?

         24                 INSPECTOR ROPPA: Yes.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Please proceed.
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          2                 INSPECTOR ROPPA: Good morning, Mr.

          3  Chairman, and members of the Council. I am Inspector

          4  Leonard Roppa, Commanding Officer in the Chief of

          5  Transportation, Traffic Control Division, New York

          6  City Police Department.  And on behalf of the Police

          7  Commissioner Raymond Kelly, the Chief of

          8  Transportation, Mike Scagnelli, I am pleased to be

          9  here today to discuss the bill before you, Intro.

         10  306, regarding the assignment of Level 4 Traffic

         11  Enforcement agents.

         12                 We agree with the spirit of the

         13  legislative findings contained in the bill that the

         14  large volume of truck traffic operating within and

         15  through the City requires planning and enforcement

         16  to encourage compliance with the City's truck route

         17  restrictions. However, we strongly disagree with the

         18  suggested means of addressing this issue as proposed

         19  in the bill.

         20                 Intro. 306 directs the Police

         21  Department to identify and assess locations of truck

         22  route violations, and then requires the promotion of

         23  five percent of Level 1 Traffic Enforcement Agents

         24  to Level 4 and deploy them in the locations

         25  identified in the study.
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          2                 We respectfully suggest that the

          3  promotion and deployment of members of the Police

          4  Department must remain within the purview and

          5  discretion of police executives, and that the bill

          6  inappropriately seeks to limit the ability of the

          7  Police Commissioner to manage the operations of the

          8  Department.

          9                 The bill sets at five percent the

         10  number of Level 1 traffic enforcement agents whose

         11  work should be changed, and instead devoted to

         12  locations where truck route violations are

         13  occurring.

         14                 We believe that this approach is

         15  inappropriate. There is an established promotion

         16  track for Traffic Enforcement Agents which rewards

         17  good performance and forces the selection of

         18  qualified, able Traffic Enforcement Agents to be

         19  promoted into levels of higher responsibility.

         20                 Traffic Enforcement Agents are hired

         21  as Level 1 agents and generally perform summons

         22  enforcement for traffic violations. As they gain

         23  knowledge and experience, they may be promoted to

         24  Level 2, in which they direct and control traffic to

         25  maintain the flow of vehicles and pedestrians.
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          2                 After attaining Level 2, Traffic

          3  Enforcement Agents may be promoted to either Level 3

          4  or Level 4. Level 3 entails the towing of illegally

          5  parked vehicles and includes operating a tow truck,

          6  therefore, requiring the agent to obtain the

          7  appropriate driver's license authorizing them to

          8  engage in towing.

          9                 Level 4 Traffic Enforcement Agents

         10  perform specialized tasks, which include

         11  construction site enforcement and truck enforcement

         12  of all types. Truck weight and size limitations,

         13  safety inspections and route violations.

         14                 Level 4 Traffic Enforcement Agents

         15  must undergo a separate investigation by the Police

         16  Department's License Division, and obtain special

         17  patrolman status in order to be appointed.

         18                 It is suggested that the present

         19  promotion track for Traffic Enforcement Agents

         20  should be maintained, and that the bill does a

         21  disservice to the Department and the agents who work

         22  hard to succeed at their jobs and be promoted on

         23  their merit and experience.

         24                 We note that truck route enforcement

         25  is performed not only by Level 4 Traffic Enforcement
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          2  Agents, but also by Police Officers in both the

          3  Patrol and Transportation Bureaus.

          4                 Enforcement is tailored to local

          5  situations. It may be targeted in which certain

          6  locations are brought to our attention through our

          7  own observations, or through complaints from the

          8  community, elected officials, or community boards,

          9  and these locations are monitored for violations, or

         10  enforcement may be roving, in which enforcement

         11  personnel are on the move, looking for violations.

         12                 Patrol and transportation personnel

         13  are fully familiar with the truck routes in their

         14  respective areas of responsibility. And in 2004,

         15  members of the Police Department issued nearly 6,000

         16  summonses for truck route violations.

         17                 While we acknowledge and agree with

         18  the need for enforcement of truck route violations,

         19  and continue to respond to community complaints. We

         20  must strongly oppose this legislation, which seeks

         21  to impose operational, promotional and deployment

         22  requirements on the Police Department.

         23                 Thank you for the opportunity to be

         24  here today, and we'll be pleased to answer your

         25  questions.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you.

          3                 We've also been joined by Council

          4  Member Diana Reyna, from Brooklyn, and also Council

          5  Member Lew Fidler, also from Brooklyn.

          6                 Let me note that we also are joined

          7  in this hearing by Roger Toussaint, President of

          8  Local 100, who we will hear from immediately after

          9  the panel of administrative representatives testify

         10  and answer questions. And I believe we do have a

         11  number of questions for you.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Let me start the

         13  ball rolling here and I'll then turn it over to my

         14  colleagues who do have questions and concerns for

         15  all of you here today.

         16                 Inspector Roppa, in your opinion, do

         17  you think that truck routes are well known in the

         18  City of New York by the drivers and the trucking

         19  companies? Or might there be some confusion about

         20  what streets are permitted for travel by trucks, and

         21  what streets are off limits to trucks?

         22                 Of course we're talking about trucks

         23  that are passing through, not trucks making local

         24  deliveries.

         25                 INSPECTOR ROPPA: I would believe that
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          2  truckers that are passing through are very familiar

          3  of what the truck routes should be in the City of

          4  New York.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: And that includes

          6  not only the large tractor trailers, but the smaller

          7  trucks that are also passing through and not making

          8  local deliveries?

          9                 INSPECTOR ROPPA: I would believe so.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: So, is there a need

         11  for more signage on our City's streets designating

         12  what routes are truck routes, and what streets are

         13  prohibited to truck traffic?

         14                 INSPECTOR ROPPA: It's always good to

         15  have more signage.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: In general, is it

         17  helpful for the drivers or the drivers should just

         18  know the routes off the top of their heads? Or have

         19  them carefully preplanned in advance.

         20                 Well, I was actually going to ask

         21  Deputy Commissioner Woloch the same questions, too.

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: Happy to

         23  answer.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: From an enforcement

         25  perspective, Inspector, you know, I mean that's why
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          2  we have these two bills on the floor today. There is

          3  an issue with regard to making sure that not only

          4  the truck drivers in the companies, but the

          5  communities as well, understand where the truck

          6  routes are within the City of New York.

          7                 There is also a question about the

          8  enforcement, the two go hand-in-hand. We can't have

          9  better designation of truck routes and better

         10  information about which streets are truck routes

         11  without the commensurate enforcement.

         12                 You're testifying that we shouldn't

         13  interfere with the management of the NYPD, that you

         14  know best how to deploy the officers, and we

         15  understand that the Department' resources are

         16  stretched thin. I know we'll hear from Council

         17  Member Yassky, the prim sponsor of Intro. 308, but

         18  my question to you is immediately; is there enough

         19  information out there for the truck drivers and the

         20  communities? More signage is better is what your

         21  answer is?

         22                 INSPECTOR ROPPA: Right. In other

         23  words, I feel that the truck drivers do know exactly

         24  where the truck routes are, and adhered with pretty

         25  much.
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          2                 Number two, more signage would be

          3  very, very good. So it would be more visible, and

          4  keep in mind we have issued nearly 6,000 summonses

          5  in the past year for that one violation, truck route

          6  violations.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: I think most, and

          8  we'll hear from some truckers, that's why I'm sure,

          9  I think most truck drivers know the main routes, and

         10  if they pre-plan a trip going through the City of

         11  New York, I believe they generally know which routes

         12  they're going to take.

         13                 The problem is if there is

         14  congestion, if there is some kind of construction

         15  taking place, if there is a detour for whatever

         16  reason, whether it be a detour imposed by the City

         17  or a detour that the driver somehow feels he or she

         18  needs to make in order to make their deliveries on

         19  time or to get to their destinations in a timely

         20  fashion.

         21                 At that point, it then I think

         22  becomes unclear of what the truck routes, or the

         23  alternate routes are. Isn't there a better way, a

         24  better system we can implement in order to help

         25  these truck drivers understand which of these routes
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          2  they can use and which are clearly off limits to

          3  trucks?

          4                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: I don't

          5  think it's a question of completely reinventing the

          6  system, but I think as you have alluded to, we can

          7  do more to get more information to the truckers, the

          8  businesses, to communities. And, again, as I

          9  testified to, the spirit of 250 is in the right

         10  direction. You can never have too much information

         11  out there, and we can do more with the signage

         12  that's out there, and we can do more with the

         13  information we have, in terms of how we disseminate

         14  it, and how that information is written and

         15  communicated.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: But Deputy

         17  Commissioner, the Department of Transportation has

         18  for a long time been reluctant, if not -- well,

         19  reluctant either partially or fully, to install

         20  signage that indicates that trucks are not permitted

         21  on a particular street.

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: Over the

         23  years there's been an inconsistent policy, in terms

         24  of the installation of negative signage, and this is

         25  one of the issues we've been looking at as part of
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          2  the study. It's certainly one of the issues that's

          3  been raised in the many meetings we had with

          4  communities across the City. And it's an issue that

          5  we expect to have a new policy on when the study

          6  concludes.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: So right now what is

          8  the policy concerning the installation of signs,

          9  designating whether a street is permissible for use

         10  by a truck passing through, and which streets are

         11  not usable by truck traveling through?

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: The focus

         13  over the last quarter century, since this truck

         14  route system has been put in place, has been on

         15  positive signage, signage indicating that a street

         16  is a local truck route or a through truck route, as

         17  opposed to negative signage, and the bulk of the

         18  signage out there is comprised of positive signs.

         19  There is some negative signage in some places that's

         20  been put up over the years.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: And why is it that

         22  the Department for the last, as you say 25 years,

         23  why is the DOT so reluctant to just put up a simple

         24  sign that says no trucks?

         25                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: You know,
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          2  I think part of the concern has been that the number

          3  of streets that are actually truck routes is a small

          4  percentage of the total universe of the streets of

          5  the City. So, if we were to put up negative signs on

          6  every single street, there would be a proliferation

          7  of signage.

          8                 I mean, one of the concerns that we

          9  have is that in a City like New York there's a lot

         10  of signage required between parking signs and safety

         11  signs, and I think you sort of run the risk if you

         12  have too much signage that people, truckers,

         13  citizens, motorists, everybody, start to ignore

         14  them.

         15                 So, I think there has been a

         16  conservative attitude about placing the signs. But,

         17  again, it is something we've been looking at as part

         18  of the study.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: I think that the

         20  problem is that many of these truck operators are

         21  ignoring what the designated truck routes are

         22  already. Putting signs up would at least allow the

         23  police officers and the community residents to say

         24  to the truck drivers that go down their residential

         25  streets not once a year, not once a month, but every
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          2  single day at the exact same time, these truck

          3  drivers are going through residential streets,

          4  taking detours from the more congested designated

          5  truck routes, in many cases knowing that they're

          6  going down a street illegally, in some cases not

          7  necessarily knowing that a street is not legally

          8  usable by trucks, just because there's so many other

          9  trucks on it. So, we're not asking you, in the past

         10  no one has ever asked you to put a no truck sign on

         11  every single street that is illegal for use by

         12  trucks passing through. But on the other hand, there

         13  are actually a relatively small number, not in the

         14  thousands, but perhaps in the low hundreds of

         15  streets in this City where the trucks do rumble down

         16  these residential streets illegally, and it's not

         17  actually clear that those streets are not truck

         18  routes. I think Council Member Reyna can certainly

         19  point to many streets in her district. I can point

         20  to many streets in my district that are used as

         21  alternate routes, and it would be helpful if we

         22  could put up these no truck routes. And that is, of

         23  course, in the absence of any action or any action

         24  that's come to fruition by your department on this

         25  issue.

                                                            32

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2                 You testified that initially you were

          3  going to complete this study, and make the

          4  recommendations by this spring. Actually, in the

          5  summer of 2003, when we first heard this Intro. 250

          6  in this Committee, you testified at that point, or

          7  perhaps it was Commissioner Weinshall who testified

          8  at that point that the study would be complete by

          9  the following summer. That would put us in the

         10  summer of 2004. Not the spring of 2005.

         11                 So, I find the time frame in your

         12  testimony somewhat faulty, but maybe you can correct

         13  me.

         14                 But this also is after an initiative

         15  that your Department began some time in 1998 or

         16  1999, where there was also an effort to reexamine

         17  all of the truck routes in the City of New York and

         18  nothing came of that.

         19                 When was the last time the Department

         20  of Transportation, despite all of our ever-changing

         21  neighborhoods throughout the City of New York, and

         22  despite the changing business dynamics, when was the

         23  last time the DOT actually designated truck routes?

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: It was

         25  about a quarter of a century ago, about 25 years
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          2  ago.

          3                 I can't speak to efforts of previous

          4  administrations, previous commissioners in terms of

          5  earlier efforts to get this truck study off the

          6  ground. Although what I do know is, the last

          7  iteration, one of the reasons that that study didn't

          8  come to fruition, again, this is under a previous

          9  commissioner, a previous administration, when that

         10  process was started and a solicitation was let to

         11  hire a consultant, there was a concern raised by

         12  communities, raised by elected officials, that the

         13  approach to the study then was not one that was

         14  going to revolve around community input.

         15                 So under this Administration, under

         16  this Commissioner, we reformulating that approach,

         17  and I think one of the mistakes we made was, as we

         18  went along with the second attempt at this study,

         19  our first attempt, but overall the second attempt,

         20  we left the original anticipated time frame in

         21  place, and I don't think it was realistic for us,

         22  given the enormity of the scope and given that we

         23  were going to revolve the first portion of the

         24  study, which is about half a year around collecting

         25  input from the communities.
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          2                 So, I think that process added on

          3  time and as I said in the testimony, I think we

          4  underestimated that.

          5                 And, again, it's alluded to in the

          6  testimony. One of the results of soliciting so much

          7  input was that there were a lot of different issues

          8  raised. This is an extremely complex issue, it's a

          9  complex system. We're not just looking at truck

         10  routes in one neighborhood, on one Council district,

         11  in one borough, we're looking at it Citywide. And,

         12  you know, we'd love to be able to finish this right

         13  now and make these, you know, and make the

         14  improvements, but without having completed the work,

         15  it would be a disservice to all of us.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Well, we appreciate

         17  the enormity of this project. We understand it's

         18  very complex. Just for the record, do you want to

         19  state that this is an initiative that the Department

         20  of Transportation began in early 2003, and was

         21  projected to finish by mid-2004, and now your

         22  testimony is that it will be done by the end of

         23  2005. So, it's basically taking close to three

         24  years, whereas the original time frame was a little

         25  less than a year and a half.
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          2                 We hope that you can finish this.

          3                 We are, in this Committee, reduced to

          4  talking about signs and signs somehow desperately to

          5  force the NYPD to assign more Traffic Enforcement

          6  Agents who are familiar with these truck

          7  regulations? Because we are at wits end. In our

          8  communities that we represent, the truck traffic

          9  illegally going through residential neighborhoods,

         10  posing dangers to pedestrians and other motorists,

         11  breaking up the roadways, which you then have to

         12  repair, and in many cases knocking down tree

         13  branches, or taking down power lines. It isn't a

         14  complaint that, I'm sure you get it through 3-1-1,

         15  we get it directly from our constituents in, I dare

         16  say, every single Council district, and that is why

         17  we need a higher priority placed on this. Complete

         18  the truck study, do whatever survey you need to do.

         19  I think if you consulted with us, we could certainly

         20  tell you where the truck routes should be and should

         21  not be, and I know that you have reached out to some

         22  of us already, and I applaud you for that. But we

         23  need this study completed. We need the truck routes

         24  designated clearly, and we need the information to

         25  go out to not only the truckers and the companies,
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          2  but also to the communities at large, and then

          3  finally we need strict enforcement of these truck

          4  routes.

          5                 Let me turn the floor over to a

          6  member of this Committee, Council Member Joe

          7  Addabbo.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: Thank you,

          9  Mr. Chair. And I want to commend you, the Committee

         10  staff, as well as my colleague, David Yassky, for

         11  these intros, which I think are needed. And to this

         12  panel, thank you very much for your time and

         13  testimony today.

         14                 Commissioner Woloch, I appreciate one

         15  of your opening statements, and I agree with it,

         16  minimizing the negative impacts of truck traffic on

         17  residential communities without unduly harming

         18  trucking and the industry and commercial activity,

         19  which I tend to agree with.

         20                 But in my district there are few

         21  major north/south roadways where trucks can go, so I

         22  find that in working with the local police precinct,

         23  truck drivers do know where the truck routes are,

         24  but because there may be a delay, again, on a major

         25  artery going north and south, they do use the
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          2  residential streets. And again, we've seen cable

          3  wires and undue vibration for the residents and

          4  obviously, aiding to the poor conditions of the

          5  streets becomes an issue in my district, which is

          6  why I believe that the existing truck routes are

          7  good, but they're only as good as they are able to

          8  be enforced.

          9                 That's why I think Intros such as 250

         10  are important.

         11                 So, three points of the reasons why

         12  you don't agree with 250, if I may ask you questions

         13  on those three?

         14                 First you had a problem with the

         15  service upon, what you feel would have to be service

         16  upon the owner of the company, my first point there,

         17  and I would like to get your opinion on this is,

         18  cannot we consider the driver, the agent of the

         19  owner, as we do normally in business situations?

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: I think

         21  the way the legislation is written is it puts the

         22  onus on the owner. But the way that moving

         23  violations are enforced, those violations are given

         24  to the driver.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: So we can
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          2  consider driver the agent of the owner, correct?

          3                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: That was

          4  not our interpretation.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: I mean,

          6  that's something we can look to because I don't

          7  think that's out of reach.

          8                 Secondly, you had mentioned that

          9  Intro. 250 does not fall into the categories of

         10  Section 1642. Do you know what are the categories of

         11  1642? And if you do know them, can you let us know?

         12  Maybe we can find a way --

         13                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: We'd be

         14  happy to sit down and talk about that.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: Do you know

         16  them now?

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: There is

         18  a long list, but we can certainly share that with

         19  you.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: Okay, that

         21  would be helpful.

         22                 To mention that 250 doesn't fit in

         23  the categories, I think it would be helpful to know

         24  what the categories are.

         25                 And lastly, you had mentioned that it
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          2  may violate the Surface Transportation Assistance

          3  Act, which would result in loss of federal aid.

          4                 How does 250 violate the STAA? How

          5  does it violate it?

          6                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: I can't

          7  speak to that in great detail.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: My only

          9  point, Commissioner, is if you're going to mention

         10  that 250 violates STAA, if we're going to mention

         11  that it's going to violate it, tell us how? How does

         12  it violate it?

         13                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: This is

         14  based on the opinion of the Corporation Counsel.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: No detail on

         16  how?

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: All right.

         18  Again, if you're going to mention that it's going to

         19  violate it, I think we should know how, okay?

         20                 Mr. Chair, thank you very much.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you, Council

         22  Member Addabbo.

         23                 A question from Council Member

         24  Yassky.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Thank you very
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          2  much, Chair Liu. I appreciate, again, I'm not a

          3  member of the Committee, I appreciate your

          4  indulgence on Intro. 306. But on 250, just for your

          5  information, a couple of times with some of the

          6  community leaders in my area just placed ourselves

          7  on the streets, particularly in the Greenpoint,

          8  Williamsburg area, that are not truck routes but are

          9  often used as truck routes by truck drivers, and

         10  just stop, when trucks are stopped at lights,

         11  knocked on their window and said, you realize this

         12  is not a truck route and you are here. And several

         13  times people say, the drivers say, well, there's no

         14  sign. You know, there's no sign this is not a truck

         15  route.

         16                 Now, that may be, that may just be

         17  their disingenuous, trying to evade responsibility,

         18  but we're maybe genuine belief that if there's no

         19  sign, then it means you're allowed to be there.

         20                 So, I give you that anecdote for what

         21  it's worth.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: And that's exactly

         23  what I was referring to, it's hard for the people in

         24  the community to place, the truck drivers place

         25  accountability on these truck drivers.
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          2                 These residents know these truck

          3  drivers. They come down these streets every day or

          4  every other day making these scheduled runs through

          5  the neighborhoods, trying to avoid traffic on the

          6  designated truck routes, and they tell the

          7  residents, they tell my neighbors, they tell my

          8  constituents, our constituents that, oh, they didn't

          9  know that they're not supposed to go down. There's

         10  nothing that says that they can't go down the

         11  streets, there's no sign that says they can't, and

         12  there are no police officers giving out tickets or

         13  telling they can't go down those streets.

         14                 Sorry, Council Member Yassky.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: No, that's

         16  exactly right. I couldn't tell you whether the truck

         17  routes are widely known or not but that's always

         18  been our little bit of our experience.

         19                 Inspector Roppa, your statement says

         20  that Intro. 306 does a disservice to the Department

         21  and the agents who work hard to succeed at their

         22  jobs and be promoted on their merit and experience.

         23                 I just want to be clear, I think the

         24  men and women who are both the Level 1 and the Level

         25  4 agents do a terrific job. I have no quarrel
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          2  whatever with them. I think they work very hard and

          3  I'm sure do overwhelmingly succeed at their jobs.

          4                 My question is about the policy

          5  direction and the allocation of enforcement

          6  resources and effort, and whether it could be

          7  profitably redirected. Six-thousand summonses in a

          8  year works out to about 19 or -- no, 16, I just did

          9  the math here, 16 a day, in the entire City of New

         10  York. I'm not saying you're agents aren't working

         11  hard, they are, but I'm saying I think we need more

         12  agents focused on the problem of off-route trucks;

         13  how many Level 4 agents are there compared to Level

         14  1 at the present?

         15                 INSPECTOR ROPPA: Level 1's there are

         16  869. And Level 4, 93.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: And when you

         18  say that, you know, in the ordinary course people

         19  are promoted through merit, is it the case that if

         20  somebody does a good job being Level 1, they are

         21  promoted to Level 2 and then Level 3 and 4, as you

         22  described? Or is there a fixed number of Level 4

         23  positions that need to be filled? It's the second

         24  one, right?

         25                 INSPECTOR ROPPA: Well, of course you
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          2  have to work upwards to get promoted, but, yes,

          3  there is an allocation.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: There may well

          5  be out of those 850 or 800 some odd, there may well

          6  be another 200 who would be terrific Level 4, there

          7  just aren't openings at the moment.

          8                 INSPECTOR ROPPA: That's correct.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Okay. I'm not

         10  trying to suggest, I don't think this bill in any

         11  way suggests that, you know, your promotion

         12  standards be compromised, or your process be

         13  compromised, other than to say to make some more

         14  Level 4 openings so that some of the people who are

         15  now Level 1 can move to Level 4, a proposal, and it

         16  was adopted by the Council and included in the

         17  budget; is that right?

         18                 INSPECTOR ROPPA: That's correct.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Those were

         20  Level 1; is that right?

         21                 INSPECTOR ROPPA: That's right.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Those were

         23  Level 1 or Level 4?

         24                 INSPECTOR ROPPA: Level 1.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Those were all
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          2  Level 1. Okay, I guess that's what I'm trying to get

          3  at here. It seems to me that if we're going to be

          4  adding enforcement resources, they ought to be

          5  directed at the problems that are the most troubling

          6  to the neighborhoods, and there is nothing that a

          7  Level 4 does -- that rather the Level 1 does that

          8  the Level 4 cannot do. Am I correct there?

          9                 INSPECTOR ROPPA: Well, it would be a

         10  problem the way the bill was written, because Level

         11  3's do towing.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Yes.

         13                 INSPECTOR ROPPA: And you can go from

         14  a two to a three, or a two to a four, so a person

         15  could be a Level 4 that does not know towing, so the

         16  way the bill was written it would be incorrect.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Okay, you're

         18  saying that it would take away from the towing?

         19                 INSPECTOR ROPPA: From the towing

         20  piece.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Well, that's

         22  certainly not the intention.

         23                 And Chair Liu, I would stand ready to

         24  work with the Department and yourself and the

         25  Committee staff to ensure that's not the effect.
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          2  That's certainly not the intent. I'm not sure how it

          3  would be the effect. Because the goal is to move

          4  folks from Level 1 to Level 4. I don't think that

          5  would take from Level 3 at all, but if there's

          6  something I'm missing, I'd be happy to work with you

          7  to correct it.

          8                 So, I guess I would say, Inspector, I

          9  agree with you that the Department should -- that

         10  the Council should be reluctant to mettle in a very

         11  detailed way in Police Department, you know,

         12  practices. That's your job. But I do think the

         13  principle needs to be clear and articulated, and I

         14  do think it's the role of the Council to say,

         15  off-route trucks are a serious problem that do not

         16  have the level of resources directed toward it that

         17  they ought to, and that it would be better for the

         18  citizens, if it's somebody focusing on too close to

         19  the curb parking tickets, and somebody focusing on

         20  off-route violations, truck violations, it's the

         21  truck ones that cause more damage to quality of

         22  life. And I do think that's an appropriate role for

         23  the Council.

         24                 Thank you, Chair Liu.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you, Council
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          2  Member Yassky.

          3                 Questions from Council Member

          4  Gonzalez.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER GONZALEZ: Good

          6  morning. Thank you to our chairman and to all our

          7  colleagues here today for this hearing.

          8                 What I want to say to you, Deputy

          9  Commissioner, thank you for your testimony.

         10                 I have a question, and I clearly

         11  agree with you where you have here that trucking

         12  here is vital to the City's economic fabric, I

         13  certainly agree with that. But I want to go over to

         14  where stated in respect to the study's

         15  recommendations to spring. I know my office, as we

         16  spoke earlier and have spoken to your office, we are

         17  very, very interested in those findings.

         18                 It's sad when I have to sit here

         19  after so many tragic deaths in my district

         20  particularly with trucks. I have had a lot of the

         21  parents continue to call my office, and I know that

         22  the community boards and the people in the community

         23  have also continued to insist that these needs to

         24  happen as soon as possible.

         25                 We have so many children and so many
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          2  people living, I mean I am interested in the entire

          3  City, but I just want to be specific to my district

          4  right now, we have so many children living where

          5  children did not live before.

          6                 I mean, with the influx of

          7  immigration and the kind of democracy and the open

          8  doors that we have, which is a beautiful thing. We

          9  also have to start doing something to provide

         10  quality of life and safety.

         11                 So, I just want to ask with respect

         12  to the length of time that you need for this

         13  assessment, and you state here that you're getting

         14  feedback and have received from elected officials,

         15  if you could elaborate a little bit on that, what

         16  exactly that is and how my office and how we could

         17  assist you to sort of do things a little faster in

         18  respect to that?

         19                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: Sure. As

         20  I had mentioned, the study began with about 20

         21  community meetings throughout the City, as well as

         22  surveys for residents, businesses and truckers. So,

         23  a lot of it, the baseline information we are working

         24  with is part of the study, came from communities

         25  throughout the City.
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          2                 And actually, one of the issues that

          3  was not part of the original scope, but it's

          4  something that we've gotten a lot of input and

          5  feedback, particularly from elected officials, is

          6  the safety issue. And one of the components of the

          7  study that we've added on that wasn't part of the

          8  original scope is to look at high accident

          9  locations, and think about high truck accident

         10  locations and think about mitigations. So it's

         11  precisely that feedback and I think we have had

         12  conversations over the past year, and there were a

         13  number of tragic accidents, and it was that

         14  feedback, again, from a number of elected officials,

         15  that led us to add this additional component. And

         16  this is one of the reasons that the time line has

         17  been extended.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: And I just

         19  want to say that clearly my office, as well as the

         20  community in my district is very interested in

         21  assisting.

         22                 I mean, I grew up in Sunset Park and

         23  I remember riding my bike on Second Avenue and there

         24  was no one living there at the time, and now you go

         25  on Second Avenue and there are a lot of homes and a
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          2  lot of people living there.

          3                 So, I think because it's 25 years

          4  old, we need to look at and reassess it. And I don't

          5  want to continue on the same road here, but I also

          6  just want to say that in my district there is a

          7  school PS 314, and they also are very concerned

          8  about the traffic there. It's almost an accident

          9  waiting to happen.

         10                 We've been working with your office

         11  for over probably three years, and you have been,

         12  and your office has been very forthcoming with the

         13  LPI, the community board has been on top of it, and

         14  I think that's what it takes. It takes that bridge

         15  between the community and the elected person and

         16  your office to hopefully be able to assess the need

         17  and hopefully come back with something that's going

         18  to provide public safety and I thank you and I hope

         19  we can move on with this, and I just want to ensure

         20  that we do it together. Thank you.

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: I

         22  absolutely agree with that, and I think that

         23  partnership with all of the members is extremely

         24  important for us.

         25                 I would also like to point out that
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          2  one of the things we are doing is we are taking a

          3  very close look at ten industrial areas throughout

          4  the City, and part of what we're looking at is the

          5  fact that land use has changed, and these

          6  communities are different than the way they were 25

          7  years ago. And Sunset Park is one of those areas.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: And I know

          9  that your office has worked in respect to the LPI

         10  and that's okay, and it's wonderful, but we still

         11  need to revisit that because it is a problem in a

         12  lot of the streets in New York, but specifically

         13  District 38. Thank you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you. Questions

         15  from Council Member Sears, who has joined us.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Now it's on,

         17  okay. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

         18                 And good morning. It's good to see

         19  you all again.

         20                 I have some very brief questions.

         21  Because you have added this extra time, tell me what

         22  does the study cost so far, and has it increased the

         23  cost with this extension of time?

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: No, we

         25  don't believe so. The total allocation for the
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          2  project, and it's primarily federal money, 1.3

          3  million.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Who is doing

          5  it? You may have said that before I came in.

          6                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: It's

          7  being managed by DOT, and consultants are Edwards

          8  and Kelsey.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: First, you said

         10  you consulted with elected officials, and probably

         11  you've worked with the Borough President, so I say

         12  this very respectfully, but if I were to mention

         13  things like Northern Boulevard that go east and

         14  west, Roosevelt Avenue, 37th Avenue, Queens

         15  Boulevard, major, major truck routes, I have not

         16  heard from you at all. And these are Citywide truck

         17  routes, they come throughout my district, so I find

         18  it extraordinary that you have consulted, and on

         19  some very major thoroughfares where there are 16

         20  real trucks, where they cannot even make turns, they

         21  get lost, I find it very extraordinary that if it

         22  wasn't me you wanted to speak to, and I'm saying

         23  this on a Citywide level, that certainly you would

         24  have contacted the office, and I happen to agree

         25  with Councilman Addabbo and Councilwoman Gonzalez,
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          2  to contact the elected officials and there are 51

          3  here and this is a Citywide issue, I have never been

          4  contacted by your consultants, ever. And I'm not

          5  making this a personal thing, we're talking about a

          6  Citywide issue, and just the areas I mention to you

          7  are Citywide. Because they cannot leave Manhattan

          8  going out unless they have certain routes and find

          9  themselves on Astoria or find themselves over the

         10  bridges or find themselves on Northern Boulevard and

         11  Queens Boulevard.

         12                 So, who has a better pulse on exactly

         13  what are the errors and how to expand that study,

         14  and what directions there should really be? Because

         15  I don't think anyone here, and certainly for myself,

         16  recognize trucks' need to be on the streets of the

         17  City of New York. Absolutely, there is no question

         18  about that. But how they do it, and where they do

         19  it, and the knowledge that they have of the 59

         20  community boards that they are going into Citywide

         21  on those streets, I don't know who your consultants

         22  contacted, but, David, I'm really familiar with

         23  consultants, and as you know I've worked in

         24  transportation, half the times the consultants have

         25  to be educated as to exactly what the community is
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          2  about, and where the problems are. And I wish you

          3  would redirect those consultants. Because if this is

          4  extended until the end of this year, that means that

          5  due to this extension, there can be no changes in

          6  the approach. It means that the same burdensome

          7  hazardous conditions that we are living with will

          8  continue, will continue until the end of the year,

          9  if not into January of 2006.

         10                 I think we need some advice on how do

         11  we deal with this very difficult situation. Until

         12  this study is finished, and certainly since at least

         13  in my area that has some very major Citywide routes,

         14  have not heard from your consultants.

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:

         16  Councilwoman, we'd be happy to sit down with

         17  yourself, with your consultants. We'd just like to

         18  say that we did have a number of meetings in 2003

         19  that reach out to the Council about those meetings,

         20  but we're happy to sit down with you.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: I think that

         22  would be very important, and I certainly would

         23  appreciate that.

         24                 I also feel that since budget time is

         25  approaching and some of us serve on that Finance
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          2  Committee, that the communities are going to need

          3  some things, since this study is not complete, on

          4  how we in the communities with these major routes,

          5  and they're a given and as I explained earlier they

          6  should not be there, I mean we need to know what do

          7  we do, the kind of enforcement that is needed?

          8                 And if that has to come from Finance,

          9  then I think that you need to state that as we begin

         10  the budget hearings, because there really is very

         11  little enforcement, and I think that we need to do

         12  that in order to live with this problem for many,

         13  many, many more months. And I do think that's an

         14  unreasonable request.

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:

         16  Councilwoman, it's a good point. I don't want to

         17  give the impression that we are sitting on our hands

         18  waiting --

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: I didn't imply

         20  that, but there are weaknesses in what has been

         21  going on. There are obvious weaknesses, and it isn't

         22  to point a finger, it's to see that those gaps get

         23  very small so that we can address in a more

         24  expeditious way how, what you do. Because I think

         25  the entire traffic situation needs to be addressed,
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          2  studied, you do that from federal funding, and you

          3  need to do that.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you, Council

          5  Member Sears.

          6                 And final questions from Council

          7  Member Reyna.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Good morning,

          9  gentlemen.

         10                 I just wanted to find out further

         11  clarification. Deputy Commissioner Woloch, you had

         12  mentioned in the second page in the first paragraph

         13  where you were referencing enforcement in regards to

         14  the bill. It would be unenforceable as it would be

         15  impossible to serve the owner of a vehicle with a

         16  violation unless he or she was also the driver of

         17  the vehicle.

         18                 But if my recollection is correct in,

         19  I believe two years ago, there was legislation

         20  passed by Assemblyman Lentil at the State

         21  Legislature, that referred to an increase in fines

         22  to a thousand dollars and points to the driver's

         23  license, despite the fact that the truck was not his

         24  per se. So, now, the purpose of that legislation was

         25  to avoid, you know, the loss to the business as a
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          2  write-off, which is essentially what occurs in

          3  trying to do the right thing here in the City of New

          4  York, you know, these businesses, and I'm not

          5  lumping them all together. But at the end of the day

          6  they take it as a loss as part of doing business in

          7  the City of New York.

          8                 So, I feel like your response to our

          9  request is contradicting what the State Legislature

         10  has already superseded and made into effect.

         11                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: I think

         12  there is a difference.

         13                 And the legislation you cite is

         14  extremely important, and one that the City

         15  supported.

         16                 When the driver goes off route, we

         17  now have stricter penalties based on that

         18  legislation. And the assumption is that the mistake

         19  is the driver's mistake. He or she had gone in a

         20  place where they weren't supposed to go.

         21                 With 250 the onus and I think we

         22  understand the intent of this, is to put the burden

         23  on the owner in that case, because it's the owner, I

         24  think perhaps some of your colleagues could speak

         25  better to this, but my understanding is the
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          2  rationale is that the owner should really be

          3  responsible for giving all of his or her drivers the

          4  information they need. So, I think that's the

          5  difference. That's why 250 goes to the owner and the

          6  penalties for the truck routes themselves that were

          7  strengthened by the State Legislation goes

          8  appropriately to the driver.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: But as far as a

         10  traffic infraction is concerned, wouldn't the

         11  vehicle operator be referencing, be referenced as

         12  the person responsible as opposed to, possibly

         13  there's a misinterpretation, I'm not too sure if

         14  that's how I'm reading our legislation, where the

         15  onus is really towards the driver, not the vehicle,

         16  or who owns the vehicle, as opposed to who is

         17  driving it.

         18                 So, I'd like some further

         19  clarification as to what we're trying to put into

         20  effect. Because I believe what the State Legislature

         21  has done, has given us the power to enforce better

         22  truck routes and be able to manage those truck

         23  drivers who are illegally going to routes that are

         24  not designated as designated truck routes.

         25                 In addition to that, I don't know how
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          2  much coordination is going to be put into effect as

          3  far as the 3-1-1 reports. Has DOT, along with NYPD,

          4  sit down on a monthly basis to go over 3-1-1 truck

          5  traffic complaints?

          6                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: You know,

          7  we've been working very closely with 3-1-1 to

          8  improve our ability to take in truck-related issues

          9  and get them added to the right place, whether it's

         10  a request for enforcement, which would go to PD, or

         11  policy questions which would go to us. So it has

         12  been something we've been focused on.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Is that

         14  something that you can elaborate further with us, as

         15  far as, you know, what numbers, as far as statistics

         16  are concerned, have you seen greater numbers within

         17  specific geographic areas throughout the City of New

         18  York?

         19                 For instance, Metropolitan Avenue is

         20  a designated truck route. Perhaps some of our

         21  constituents refuse to believe that because they're

         22  the ones who have to deal with a vibration of their

         23  home, as opposed to others who just have to deal

         24  with the truck coming off that route, and going on

         25  to residential streets, where now they're

                                                            59

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  jeopardizing the lives of these people.

          3                 And so, I'm concerned that perhaps a

          4  lot of complaints are being channeled through 3-1-1,

          5  but not necessarily being dealt with at the

          6  enforcement level necessary, or perhaps at the truck

          7  signage level necessary. So that if there is an

          8  increase by 100 calls on a monthly basis, where now

          9  we've seen an increase of a thousand on an annual

         10  basis, then obviously that specific geographic area

         11  is demanding attention to be addressed as far as

         12  illegal truck burdensome matter to be dealt with.

         13                 Is that something that you can share

         14  with us, or it's too preliminary?

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: I don't

         16  have it with me, but I can see what we do have.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Okay.

         18                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: And I

         19  would like to note that, the two of us were at one

         20  of our community meetings within your district, and

         21  that the issue about Metropolitan Avenue was one of

         22  the items focused on.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: And I know that

         24  you are looking into redesignation of truck routes.

         25  I know that the Commissioner is committed to
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          2  figuring out how to ease the burden of truck routes

          3  on Metropolitan Avenue, perhaps shifting it to

          4  Meeker Avenue is one of the ideas being thrown.

          5                 But I look forward to just

          6  establishing working together and making sure that

          7  we come to a compromise that's going to benefit

          8  everyone.

          9                 In addition to that, I just wanted to

         10  ask the Inspector, Inspector Roppa, you had

         11  mentioned that the Level 1 officers that were hired,

         12  300, all 300 were filled as far as what we allocated

         13  as a budget item for new Traffic Enforcement Agents?

         14                 INSPECTOR ROPPA: Yes, they were.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: And, so, from

         16  that 300, how many have been promoted, or at least

         17  how many within the Department have been promoted

         18  before these 300 were already filled? Has there been

         19  a shift of promotions from Level 1 to gradually move

         20  into a major goal which is Level 4, for an increase

         21  of Level 4 agents?

         22                 INSPECTOR ROPPA: As people have

         23  retired we have filled those openings over the past

         24  year. We have had promotion to Level 4 in the last

         25  year.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Out of the 300

          3  new agents that we can count on at Level 1, how many

          4  have we gained at Level 4?

          5                 INSPECTOR ROPPA: Probably none at

          6  this time because you would need at least a year and

          7  a half, two years.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: How many did

          9  you have at Level 1 prior to the new 300?

         10                 INSPECTOR ROPPA: At Level 1?

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Prior to the

         12  new 300 agents?

         13                 INSPECTOR ROPPA: About 700 prior to

         14  and then going up to 1,000.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: So, let's say

         16  I'll use the higher number for the sake of being

         17  able to use a greater number. A thousand agents at

         18  Level 1, I would think at least 50 percent of a

         19  thousand would go to Level 2, because they have the

         20  time necessary to move into the higher levels

         21  necessary, as mandated by, you know, its tenure.

         22                 INSPECTOR ROPPA: Right.  But that

         23  would take a year and a half, two years before they

         24  would even move up to the Level 2 position.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: So instead of
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          2  having a thousand, we have 1,300 at Level 1?

          3                 MR. VALLES: Hi. I'm John Valles,

          4  Director of Parking Enforcement.

          5                 The way the Traffic Agent level has

          6  worked, we have an attrition rate, about 30 Traffic

          7  Agents a month that attrit out of the system, so on

          8  the quarterly basis, pretty much on a quarterly

          9  basis we have a hiring, and all entry level Traffic

         10  Agents come in as Level 1. The promotions include

         11  those 30 people, of people that are attrited,

         12  upgraded to the other levels, so there's two, three,

         13  fours. So, those agents, as they come in, are just

         14  backfilling the vacancies that are created by either

         15  retirement, all right? Or termination or promotion.

         16                 So, when you look at the numbers, if

         17  you have 800 agents, and you would have a class of

         18  115, we're backfilling the 115 that actually

         19  attrited out of the Level 1 program, either one

         20  avenue out of the agency and the other was through

         21  the promotions.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: I understand

         23  what you're trying to explain to me. What I'm not

         24  getting is why are we not seeing an increase at

         25  Level 4 if we have agents already at Level 3, 2 and,
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          2  of course, a new class of 300?

          3                 MR. VALLES: We're mandated to stay

          4  within the allocation of authorized headcount. So,

          5  if we're only authorized to have 95 Level 4's, and

          6  we fill up those 95.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Now you're

          8  talking to me, and, so --

          9                 MR. VALLES: -- Ninety-five, whatever

         10  is left behind that, they're in the appropriate --

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: And so we need

         12  to see the authorized mandated amount at Level 4

         13  increase, as opposed to saying we can't promote

         14  because there is no time line for that specific

         15  agent to move up?

         16                 MR. VALLES: We have a maximum. They

         17  attrit out. We attempt to promote, as often as we

         18  can to backfill those promotions, and then bring in

         19  the entry level, Level 1.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: So my original

         21  question will not change. How many authorized

         22  mandated agents at Level 4? Ninety-five. And so if

         23  we want to see a change of 95 to 150, what is it

         24  that we need to do?

         25                 MR. VALLES: That's a budgetary issue.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: But we already

          3  hired 300 new ones at Level 1 and that was a

          4  budgetary issue.

          5                 MR. VALLES: Right. Again, the Traffic

          6  Agents each level you're authorized --

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: At the higher

          8  salary.

          9                 MR. VALLES: At different salary

         10  levels. So, if we have only 95 Level 4s, we're only

         11  budgeted for 95 agents at that particular salary.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: And, so, if we

         13  were to find the necessary budget lines that we need

         14  in order to increase, how much are we referring to

         15  as far as budget is concerned for 150 new agents at

         16  Level 4.

         17                 MR. VALLES: We'll have to get back to

         18  you.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Can we get

         20  those numbers? I would appreciate it.

         21                 MR. VALLES: Absolutely.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Thank you.

         23  Thank you, Chairman. And thank you, David Yassky,

         24  for this legislation.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you, Council
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          2  Member Reyna, for getting to the heart of the

          3  matter, which actually is not addressed in your

          4  testimony, Inspector Roppa.

          5                 The problem that we're trying to deal

          6  with, I'm not trying to interfere with your

          7  promotion practices. We certainly don't want to

          8  interfere with the management of the NYPD, the

          9  finest in the City, but you're telling us that you

         10  have a cap of how many Level 4 agents you can have,

         11  and we're telling you through this legislation that

         12  it just aint enough. We need more.

         13                 And, so, you may, you can maybe then

         14  tell us you don't think we need more, but you can't

         15  simply say you don't want to deal with this

         16  legislation because you feel indignant that we're

         17  trying to micromanage your Department.

         18                 You strongly oppose this legislation,

         19  which seeks to impose operational, promotional and

         20  deployment requirements -- actually, no. We're not

         21  trying to do any of that. I think we're trying to

         22  tell you that we need to see more Level 4 agents out

         23  on the streets, because we don't see enough

         24  enforcement against illegal truck traffic coming

         25  through our constituents back yards.
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          2                 And in closing, Deputy Commissioner

          3  Woloch, I certainly would agree with you that this

          4  Committee does want to work with the Department of

          5  Transportation and the NYPD to make our

          6  neighborhoods safer, especially as it pertains to

          7  illegal truck traffic.

          8                 We had indicated this to you in the

          9  middle of 2003, when your Commissioner first

         10  reported to us that this initiative was being

         11  undertaken, and therefore we were very patient. You

         12  asked us to hold off on this legislation, and we

         13  did. We waited until the middle of 2004, which was

         14  the original time frame you gave us, and that point

         15  there was still nothing, and it is now well into

         16  2005.

         17                 So, hopefully we will have the new

         18  time frame, which is the end of this year adhered

         19  to, if there is any real need for your Department to

         20  stray off the time frame, let us know. I mean,

         21  things get complicated, things come up unexpectedly

         22  and we understand that. But we also need to be able

         23  to assure the constituents that we represent that

         24  action is being taken on the part of the City, and

         25  that we're doing our job to making sure, in making
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          2  sure that the truck routes are designated, and

          3  designated in a way that enhances safety in our

          4  residential neighborhoods. And in your testimony and

          5  in your subsequent comments, you mentioned two

          6  things, which I would think are relevant to study

          7  and designation of truck routes in New York City,

          8  does your Department anticipate any impact from the

          9  implementation of the Solid Waste Management Plan

         10  once that is implemented, when we are going from

         11  land-based transfer stations to marine-based

         12  transfer stations?

         13                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: The

         14  Department of Sanitation is one of the agencies that

         15  we've been working with as part of the study. And

         16  there will be discussions on that.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: So is there some

         18  kind of impact that once the Solid Waste Management

         19  Plan is fully implemented, will that have an impact

         20  on truck routing within the City of New York?

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: It

         22  certainly will have an impact on truck routing. How

         23  exactly it will affect the recommendations at the

         24  end of the study still remains to be seen.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Okay. I gather that
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          2  from your comments, though, it hasn't really been

          3  considered as something that has a huge impact on

          4  how you would designate the truck routes in the

          5  City.

          6                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: No. I

          7  think it's something that will have an impact and

          8  it's something that consultants have begun looking

          9  at and will look at further.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Okay, the other

         11  thing that you haven't mentioned, that I would think

         12  is relevant to this is an initiative that's being

         13  undertaken by the Economic Development Corporation

         14  where they have been looking at for quite some time

         15  now the construction of a Cross Harbor Freight

         16  Tunnel, that according to the EDC's own words is

         17  intended to reduce the truck traffic in our City. Is

         18  that being anticipated in your study?

         19                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: It's not

         20  being anticipated per se in a sense that the Cross

         21  Harbor Freight Tunnel will do a lot to alleviate

         22  truck traffic, but I think it would be foolish to

         23  assume that a $5 million project is going to happen.

         24  If it does happen, it certainly won't happen

         25  overnight. I think we need to be prepared with a
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          2  system that doesn't necessarily include the tunnel

          3  because it's not here yet, and there are a lot of

          4  competing transportation priorities looking for

          5  dollars. So, it would not be prudent to assume that

          6  it's going to be there and build a set of

          7  recommendations revolving around that.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Great. Thank you

          9  very much for being with us this morning. And I know

         10  we kept you past your appointed hour, so, once

         11  again, thank you. We appreciate your testimony

         12  today.

         13                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: Thank

         14  you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: At this point I'd

         16  like to invite, we will stray from the issue of

         17  truck routes for a brief period and invite testimony

         18  on Resolution 796-A. I believe we only have one

         19  witness, that would be Roger Toussaint, the

         20  President of Local 100 of the Transport Workers

         21  Union.

         22                 Shortly after that we will take a

         23  vote on Resolution 796-A, and then resume testimony

         24  on the truck route issues.

         25                 Thank you, President Toussaint, for
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          2  bearing with us this morning.

          3                 President Toussaint, good morning,

          4  and welcome.

          5                 MR. TOUSSAINT: Good morning.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you, President

          7  Toussaint. Please proceed.

          8                 MR. TOUSSAINT: Good morning, Chairman

          9  Liu, and members of the Committee. Congratulations

         10  on the yeoman's work the Committee has been

         11  performing on behalf of the citizens of New York.

         12                 We at Local 100 are gratified that

         13  this Council and this Committee addressing a

         14  question of direct concern of tens of thousands of

         15  riders today, and millions of riders tomorrow. The

         16  importance of developing New York's system of mass

         17  transportation is not in question here.

         18                 At issue is the folly of New York

         19  City's transit instinct to seize on every turn as an

         20  excuse for diminishing the human presence in that

         21  system.

         22                 In the mid-1990s, when the Transit

         23  Authority pushed the conductors out of the system, a

         24  process of arbitration resulted in a set of rules

         25  specifying which trains can be run without
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          2  conductors.

          3                 These rules have stood for over a

          4  decade. The Authority now hopes to unilaterally

          5  brush aside those rules on the grounds that new

          6  technology the Canarsie Line renders them passe.

          7                 Yet, management's current timetable

          8  has conductors coming off the L Line months before

          9  the technology will be ready for implementation.

         10  Once this subterfuge succeeds on the Canarsie line,

         11  we will witness attempts to remove conductors from

         12  other lines years before the implementation of new

         13  technology, and then with no reference to the new

         14  technology at all. This new technology is a red

         15  herring, a new excuse for an old ambition, an

         16  ambition as irresponsible today as it was in the

         17  past.

         18                 Under these conditions, 30 members of

         19  the State Assembly have introduced a bill to specify

         20  conditions under which two crew members must be

         21  aboard a subway train.

         22                 Bill A.3654 sets three conditions:

         23  One, the length of the train; two, passenger load;

         24  three, whether the line passes over or under a body

         25  of water. The first two points correspond to rules
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          2  that have been in place for over a decade; the third

          3  point is a thoughtful addition.

          4                 Bill A.3654 is a boon to passenger

          5  safety and our Union heartily endorses it.

          6                 Yes, we stand accused of trying to

          7  save jobs. To this I would plead guilty with an

          8  explanation. If irresponsible practices drive riders

          9  out of the system, the transit system will suffer

         10  and transit workers will suffer. It is not just a

         11  matter of conductor jobs on the Canarsie Lined,

         12  although of course those are important to us. A

         13  healthy transit system is key to economic growth in

         14  the region. Driver riders out of mass transit and

         15  the economic consequences could reach further than

         16  the Canarsie line and further than transit alone.

         17                 I believe that it is fitting and

         18  proper for the New York City Council to lend its

         19  voice tot his project of ensuring an adequate

         20  presence of trained personnel on the subways. The

         21  majority of our riders are constituents of Council

         22  members, and the Council is intimately familiar with

         23  the impact of transit policy, both positive and

         24  negative, on those constituents and on their safety.

         25                 So, we are deeply gratified by this
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          2  initiative by the Council, the Council has shown in

          3  considering this question. And we hope that the

          4  Council's backing of Bill A.3654 will receive a

          5  serious hearing in Albany. I thank you for your

          6  attention to this matter. I will be happy to answer

          7  questions.

          8                 I am joined here by a number of

          9  members of our union who have in excess of 20 years

         10  of experience, both as conductors and train

         11  operators, to assist me in clarifying any questions

         12  the Council and this Committee may have.

         13                 Thank you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you, President

         15  Toussaint. This Committee appreciates you and all of

         16  the members of Local 100 and community activists for

         17  being out in the front on this issue.

         18                 The issue, you need not be defensive

         19  in any way about protecting jobs. From the outset

         20  you and the members have always stated the priority

         21  being safety, safety of the passengers, and that's

         22  exactly what this Committee is concerned about.

         23                 The ongoing efforts of the MTA to

         24  introduce more and more automation into our subway

         25  system, our 100-year-old subway system, is something

                                                            74

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  that gives us great concern.

          3                 It's not that anybody is opposed to

          4  automation. We always want more efficient operation,

          5  but we do not want more efficiency at the expense of

          6  safety to the passengers, safety to the workers, and

          7  we have seen too many incidents over the past just

          8  couple of years where things at the MTA have gone

          9  down the wrong path. It doesn't take me to point out

         10  to anybody in this room that just recently there was

         11  an issue of how an MTA decision to automate

         12  passenger entry into the subway system potentially

         13  resulted in the death of someone on the platforms.

         14  The police were not able to get in. Had there been a

         15  human presence operating that entry into the subway

         16  system, that life could very well have been saved.

         17                 And yet, because it was fully

         18  automated, there was no way for the cops to get in

         19  to help the stricken passenger.

         20                 That is just one, the latest example

         21  of how automation at the MTA has gone awry, awry to

         22  the point where their quest for efficiency and cost

         23  savings is now putting passengers and workers at

         24  risk.

         25                 So, we certainly want to thank you
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          2  for coming out here and speaking in support of our

          3  resolution and in support of the Assembly bill to

          4  require a certain minimum amount of presence, human

          5  presence, in the Transit system, under certain

          6  conditions that warrant the continuation of human

          7  presence.

          8                 We have questions from Council Member

          9  Sears and Council Member Fidler.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Thank you, Mr.

         11  Chairman.

         12                 And thank you, Mr. Toussaint. It's

         13  good to see all of you.

         14                 I just have, you've made the comment

         15  that it's like you're saving jobs. If I could just

         16  take that out of that realm for a minute and ask you

         17  a question.

         18                 The subway system has levels, sub

         19  levels and all the way down, and I ride the subway,

         20  just as I drive my car and I ride the buses, and I

         21  have been on one of those sub levels. I don't know

         22  what it would be like for me to be in an automated

         23  system down there without being able to really have

         24  a human being flow the pedestrian traffic.

         25                 Do you think that has ever been
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          2  considered in the fact that they're proposing this

          3  automated system, which ultimately will be

          4  throughout the system over maybe 20 years, 30 years?

          5  I'm not sure what their time frame was.

          6                 MR. TOUSSAINT: I suspect there has

          7  been no studies done of this very real problem. I

          8  mean, New Yorkers are very familiar with the subway

          9  system. So, it doesn't take much imagination to

         10  ponder about this type of thing, just as you have.

         11                 I would render to suggest that they

         12  have not thought about that at all. And have

         13  performed no studies, no hazard assessments, they

         14  have not done due diligence, the process has been

         15  flawed because they are riveted on accomplishing

         16  their preconceived objectives and notions and plans

         17  they have committed, hundreds of millions, if not

         18  more, to achieving that. And that sets us a certain

         19  dynamic in processing in place. It means that the

         20  oversight committees in how, first of all, the

         21  process is set up there, all these determinations

         22  are made in house by house committees, not by

         23  outside independent assessors. They are hired and

         24  driven by operation managers. The people making

         25  these risk assessments know that what the operation
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          2  managers want by the end of it, and that influences

          3  the process. The process is flawed. And I would say

          4  that if they had nothing to worry about, they would

          5  not worry about bringing in independent, truly

          6  independent assessors to make these type of

          7  evaluations and to look at the multi levels.

          8                 The under-river tubes, for instance,

          9  the most shallow one is probably ten stories down,

         10  then it ranges to much more than that. If you have

         11  to evacuate a train in an under-river tube, it's

         12  very confined. As a track worker working in those

         13  under-river tubes, I'll tell you when the trains are

         14  coming through, you have to couch yourself into a

         15  ball on the catwalk, because there's not even enough

         16  clearance to stand up while the train is coming to

         17  you. You have to actually couch into a ball onto the

         18  catwalk, in order for the train to pass you without

         19  pulling you into it.

         20                 Now, you have to evacuate passengers

         21  in a very confined tube, and take them up 17

         22  stories, and they're going to leave that to a train

         23  operator on the front of a train. That's just an

         24  example.

         25                 This is one of the reasons why this
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          2  bill specifies the circumstances of under the tubes

          3  and bridges and so forth.

          4                 But I imagine that there are a number

          5  of other similar circumstances in multi-level subway

          6  systems, the under-river tubes, the lengthy

          7  stretches between stations on some lines, and other

          8  track and subway configurations to make an extremely

          9  complex operation into protecting people's safety.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Well,

         11  considering the nature, the complexity, the length,

         12  the intricacies of the New York subway system, which

         13  doesn't exist any place else, I don't believe, in

         14  the world, it would seem that it would be better to

         15  concentrate on what they do with the current system,

         16  rather than spending what they have to spend to

         17  automate something that I think is ridiculous. I

         18  think it doesn't consider the safety of people, and

         19  just in these levels that I raised and you addressed

         20  very well, it would seem that that would be the

         21  first thing that they would look at.

         22                 MR. TOUSSAINT: Let me say that there

         23  is a value to applying efficient technology to this

         24  subway system, both in terms of the operation, the

         25  monitoring, the train locations and so on and so
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          2  forth, passenger information, passengers inside of

          3  the subway cars, passengers on platform to the token

          4  booths as well, so that there is an information loop

          5  that we can rely upon to move 7 million passengers

          6  on a daily basis.

          7                 The problem in the approach is when

          8  it is because the Transit Authority attaches the

          9  reduction of personnel to the introduction of

         10  technology.

         11                 Our approaches to really determine

         12  whether the technology is appropriate, you need to

         13  couple it from the attractiveness of saving on

         14  personnel, and the value is on its own standard, in

         15  terms of whether it provides more information,

         16  whether it provides a greater safety cushion, where

         17  it has been tried and tested and so forth. Then you

         18  can, if you reasonably reach the issue of what is

         19  the appropriate personnel level, then the process is

         20  clean. But if from the beginning you want to sell it

         21  on the basis that you would be able to remove a

         22  token booth clerk or remove a conductor, you know, I

         23  mean as a New Yorker I think it is actually quite

         24  frightening when my kids ride the train, my

         25  relatives and so forth, the notion of -- I mean if
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          2  people are still trained in New York, if you want to

          3  be safe, especially in the off hours, keep an eye on

          4  the conductor, keep an eye on the station agent, you

          5  know, you train your kids that way for them to come

          6  home safely.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: I agree. So,

          8  that's why I said let's move it out of the realm of

          9  saving jobs, and put it in the true perspective,

         10  which is basically what it creates, the safety

         11  hazards that it enhances, augments and just raises

         12  tremendously, so all-in-all, the bottom line is it's

         13  a bad idea.

         14                 All right, thank you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you, Council

         16  Member Sears, we've also been joined by Council

         17  Member Eva Moskowitz from Manhattan.

         18                 A final question is from Council

         19  Member Fidler.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Thank you,

         21  Chairman Liu.

         22                 I appreciate your indulging me,

         23  although I'm not a member of the Transportation

         24  Committee, but quite frankly I come just on this

         25  issue, because I have a level of passion that
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          2  perhaps borders on outrage and I frankly don't

          3  understand why that outrage isn't share by every

          4  newsmedia outlet in the City of New York and why

          5  they aren't all here discussing this issue.

          6                 Mr. Toussaint, frankly I don't have

          7  any questions to ask you because, as you know, on

          8  this issue you had me at hello. So, I just want to

          9  make this comment. You know, I was watching the

         10  Science Fiction channel last night and there was a

         11  story on about a train that got caught between two

         12  stations, one of which the token booth clerk had

         13  been removed from, and there was a track fire and

         14  half the passengers were escorted out by the live

         15  person on the train, but then the amazing and

         16  miraculous thing happened that the other half, you

         17  know, not wishing to be overcome by smoke,

         18  self-evacuated, and the computer on the train led

         19  them to safety where they were greeted in the

         20  station by the MetroCard machine that had come to

         21  help them come out, and of course the end scene was

         22  100 personal injury lawyers walking away

         23  disappointed that no one had been hurt.

         24                 You know, this is the reality that we

         25  are dealing with. I don't understand why they don't
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          2  get it. I can't fathom it. Because there is never

          3  going to be a situation where people are going to

          4  sit in a train waiting to die from smoke inhalation.

          5  They aren't going to sit in a level of panic, they

          6  aren't going to self evacuate onto dangerous tracks

          7  into possibly an empty station. And whatever savings

          8  the MTA would hope to have from eliminating live

          9  people on trains will be eliminated in the first

         10  lawsuit, the very first lawsuit when someone gets

         11  hurt. And it's insane for them to think of it that

         12  way.

         13                 And what's even more insane and what

         14  I cannot fathom, and this goes beyond the number of

         15  people on the train, in the computer-based train

         16  system, when we had our last hearing on this, and I

         17  asked whether or not they could be sure that you

         18  could not hack into that radio signal to make a

         19  train disappear so that, you know, the system didn't

         20  know there was a train ahead, they said they hadn't

         21  considered that question.

         22                 How in the post-9/11, post-Madrid

         23  world, could you not consider that question is

         24  beyond me. And it's irresponsible to the point of

         25  gross negligence.
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          2                 I don't know what money they're

          3  saving. They've already spent $288 million on the L

          4  Line conversion alone, which is a spit in the

          5  bucket, compared to what they're planning to do with

          6  the whole system, and the billions of dollars that

          7  they want to spend on this boondoggle, are going

          8  into somebody's pocket, and it has not put any

          9  benefit for anybody. My constituents are going to be

         10  asked to get on this train that's going to be run by

         11  some computer that could be hacked into and could be

         12  putting them in harm's way for absolutely no good

         13  reason. Why? So some sign could tell them that the

         14  next train will actually be seven minutes late

         15  instead of four minutes late? That's the benefit?

         16  That's what we're spending billions of dollars and

         17  putting people in harm's way for?

         18                 It's absolutely absurd, and we need

         19  to make that message come from this room, out to the

         20  public, because every person that hears about it is

         21  outraged by it, and the MTA continues to go ahead

         22  and spend millions of dollars every day implementing

         23  it.

         24                 I urge every one of the members of

         25  this Committee to vote yes on this resolution. We

                                                            84

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  need to stop them dead in their tracks.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you.

          4                 Thank you, Council Member Fidler.

          5                 At this time we are going to call for

          6  a vote on this resolution, 796-A. I second Council

          7  Member Fidler's recommendation that we vote in the

          8  affirmative on this bill.

          9                 Will the clerk please call the roll.

         10                 COUNCIL CLERK: Council Member Liu.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Yes.

         12                 COUNCIL CLERK: Moskowitz.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ: Yes.

         14                 COUNCIL CLERK: Reyna.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Yes.

         16                 COUNCIL CLERK: Addabbo.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: Mr. Chair,

         18  may I be briefly excused to explain my vote?

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Please do.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: Thank you.

         21                 For a number of reasons, for the sake

         22  of the safety of the riders, as Chair of the Labor

         23  Committee, for the sake of the jobs in jeopardy, to

         24  voice my opposition to the MTA's increase in

         25  automation and decrease in personal service, which I
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          2  see serves no purpose at all, and as a proud

          3  co-sponsor of Reso 796-A, I will vote yes.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you, Council

          5  Member Addabbo.

          6                 COUNCIL CLERK: Koppell.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: May I be

          8  excused to briefly explain my vote?

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Please.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: It is quite

         11  incredible that in this time of concerns over

         12  terrorism and the safety of people that we would be

         13  reducing personnel. Quite the contrary is taking

         14  place in the other transportation modes in our

         15  society. Think about the additional personnel that

         16  is now allocated to airports, for instance, the

         17  number of guards that are assigned to planes. We

         18  don't know exactly how many, but we know that there

         19  are many more guards on planes to ward against the

         20  terrorism.

         21                 The possibility, unfortunately, of an

         22  extremely harmful problem on the subways is

         23  increased because of terrorism, in addition to the

         24  mechanical possibilities, and the thought of

         25  reducing personnel, where even now with only two
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          2  people on a train with hundreds and thousands of

          3  people, personnel is certainly not overwhelming, it

          4  staggers the imagination.

          5                 So, I join in the outrage of our

          6  colleague Lew Fidler, and withdraw my request, Mr.

          7  Chairman, and vote aye.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you.

          9                 COUNCIL CLERK: Sears.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Permission to

         11  explain my vote, Mr. Chair?

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Yes, please do.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: I thought that

         14  I was on the bill, and I would like it checked as an

         15  oversight, and please redo that, because I remember

         16  extremely well supporting this.

         17                 I just want to say that I think, and

         18  Oliver Koppell has certainly brought up a point, I

         19  think what this shows is what we have been faced

         20  with in this Committee is the absolute arrogance of

         21  the MTA. And I never tire of saying that. Because

         22  when we have had to look at what needs to be done

         23  for security in this City, they are looking at

         24  reducing it when we are constantly faced with how we

         25  build up the security in this City. I vote aye on
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          2  this, and I have to say that it's one of the reasons

          3  why this reso had to come into being, because if we

          4  don't oversee and use our powers of oversight for

          5  the MTA, this City would not have half of what it

          6  has. So, we do have to keep up that work, and I

          7  thank you, Mr. Chair. I vote aye.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you.

          9                 COUNCIL CLERK: Gonzalez.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER GONZALEZ: Yes.

         11                 COUNCIL CLERK: By a vote of seven in

         12  the affirmative, zero in the negative and no

         13  abstentions, the item is adopted.

         14                 Council Members, please sign the

         15  Committee report.

         16                 Thank you.

         17                 MR. TOUSSAINT: We would like to thank

         18  the Committee.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you for

         20  spending this morning with us.

         21                 MR. TOUSSAINT: Sure.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: We look forward to

         23  spending many mornings additional together.

         24                 We now turn the focus of this hearing

         25  back to the issue of truck routes in the City of New
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          2  York.

          3                 I invite Frank McArdle from the

          4  General Contractors Association and John Maniscalco,

          5  from the New York Oil Heating Association to proceed

          6  to the witness table.

          7                 This panel will be followed by Teresa

          8  Toro and Joanne Simone.

          9                 Mr. McArdle, thank you for joining us

         10  today.

         11                 MR. McARDLE: Thank you very much.

         12                 For the record, my name is Frank

         13  McArdle. I am the Managing Director of the General

         14  Contractors Association of New York. I represent the

         15  heavy construction industry active in New York City.

         16                 I am here today to speak in

         17  opposition to the legislation as drafted.

         18                 I think we all respect the concerns

         19  that have been expressed here this morning. For

         20  somebody who lives at the corner of 94th and

         21  Broadway in Manhattan, I can appreciate very

         22  personally, the problem of the wandering truck. We

         23  see them on West End Avenue, we see them on

         24  Riverside Drive, I see them on 94th Street, trying

         25  to make their way up a hill, particularly in a snowy
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          2  day, blocking everything.

          3                 But I think before we draft

          4  legislation, I think we have to parse this problem a

          5  little bit and understand it a little bit more.

          6  Trucking is ubiquitous. Ninety-seven percent of

          7  everything we consume in the City of New York comes

          8  in by truck, and even if we were to build a freight

          9  tunnel, which we support, it's still going to be a

         10  substantial part of the transportation mix for

         11  freight in the City of New York. And the problem of

         12  trucks wandering off their routes has got to be

         13  looked at as kind of a multi-faceted problem first.

         14  And part of this problem of course is created by the

         15  mix of trucking we have in the City of New York. We

         16  have trucking that goes through, because we are the

         17  pathway to and from Long Island. We have trucks that

         18  in fact come from the mainland so-to-speak, from an

         19  industry in which there is almost 100 percent

         20  turnover in over-the-road trucking employment in any

         21  given two- to three-year period, which means every

         22  three years you're dealing with a whole new set of

         23  drivers who come in in New York in the over-the-road

         24  vehicles and who really don't have a clue.

         25                 Because, as you, yourself, may have
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          2  found, the DOT regulations are not something

          3  everybody keeps by their bedside each night, unless

          4  they suffer from insomnia, at which point if you

          5  read them, you rapidly go to sleep.

          6                 In this day and age the distribution

          7  of information about the City's truck routes, is

          8  mired some place in the 17th Century.

          9                 And we need to change that first, to

         10  provide the drivers with easy access, particularly

         11  the over-the-road drivers, the drivers who are most

         12  prone, the truck route violations with easy access

         13  to information about what the truck routes are.

         14                 As you heard this morning, one of the

         15  steps forward by DOT is to move into the 19th

         16  Century, to have a single integrated map of truck

         17  routes. This is in a day and age when, certainly I,

         18  and I suspect you as well, find our way from our

         19  origins to our destinations by clicking on Yahoo and

         20  going to maps and putting in locations and asking

         21  for driving directions.

         22                 And it occurred to me as I was

         23  thinking about this exercise, that perhaps one of

         24  the things that ought to be done, except somebody

         25  suggested it would take eight years to do this, just
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          2  given the City procedures, is that in some fashion

          3  the City, perhaps even the City Council, endorse a

          4  Mapquest product that would be focused on the truck

          5  routes, that would allow everyone that needs to

          6  truck in the City, to put in their origin, identify

          7  their destination, and get what would be the

          8  equivalent of the approved truck route.

          9                 I know that there is a great need in

         10  the Internet advertising world to create more

         11  eyeballs, so-to-speak, for ads, and I'm sure a

         12  website focused on this product would quickly

         13  attract advertisers, quite prepared to support it

         14  financially, perhaps even to the benefit of the

         15  Council or some of its projects perhaps, because it

         16  would in fact provide a focused attention to people

         17  who purchase trucking-related products.

         18                 But right now it is almost impossible

         19  for the over-the-road truck driver to easily find

         20  out what are the truck routes in the City of New

         21  York, particularly someone new.

         22                 It's not something that's easily

         23  identified by anybody. But I represent local

         24  truckers, as does Mr. Maniscalco, people who work in

         25  the City of New York everyday, who make deliveries
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          2  from fixed points. In the case of the Readi-Mix

          3  industry, from construction sites to other fixed

          4  points in which the routing of our trucks is a

          5  critical economic enterprise, in which certainly in

          6  the construction industry, and I suspect in every

          7  other industry, the control of the flow of trucking

          8  is essential to the economics of the industry. The

          9  Readi-Mix industry, because it has a volatile

         10  product that has a life to it, wants to know exactly

         11  where its trucks are at all time. And if you've been

         12  to any of the dispatching plants, go to Ferrara

         13  Brothers in Queens, for example, you see that they

         14  invest in technology that allows them to know on

         15  almost every occasion, where their trucks are.

         16  Because the more they know where their trucks are,

         17  the more trips they can in fact get from a truck,

         18  and that's where their profit is.

         19                 Similar to those people who were

         20  involved in construction, in excavation and what

         21  have you, you want to know where your trucks start,

         22  you want to know where they finish, you want to know

         23  what the cycle time is.

         24                 You don't want them off established

         25  routes because that affects the cycle time. But the
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          2  provision today by each site, for example, in the

          3  excavating business, a map to each trucker of where

          4  they start and where they finish, while desirable,

          5  in our view, doesn't necessarily solve your problem.

          6  And harking back to some testimony I gave not a few

          7  weeks ago here, we see as creating just an

          8  opportunity for people to bag a known quantity to

          9  increase the summons numbers. We're very concerned

         10  about that.

         11                 We don't want our people in your

         12  neighborhood streets, and I don't want them in my

         13  neighborhood streets, unless they have to be there,

         14  unless they have to be there because that is, in

         15  fact, the route they have to take to get from where

         16  they start, particularly in a construction site,

         17  working on a City street, in the case of the heavy

         18  construction industry working on a building site, if

         19  they're doing residential or high-rise construction,

         20  to where they have to go, which can be a pick-up or

         21  a delivery.

         22                 What we don't want is that our known

         23  locations become, as they have in so many quality of

         24  life enforcements in the City of New York, become

         25  the rationale for the allocation of ticket writers
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          2  to attack our industry.

          3                 One of the points I would make about

          4  developing, perhaps the Council itself developing, a

          5  dedicated kind of Mapquest for truck routes in the

          6  City of New York, is you could collect information

          7  about who uses it and what they do.

          8                 Right now you don't have a lot of

          9  information, unfortunately, about who the violators

         10  are. Of these 20,000 -- what is it? Eight-thousand

         11  summonses, or 6,000 summonses issued last year, who

         12  got them? How many of them went to local truckers?

         13  How many of them went to the over-the-road people,

         14  the people who easily get lost? Because the signage

         15  in the City of New York does not meet any easy test

         16  of readability, okay?

         17                 I would ask each of you some day to

         18  go to the corner of Fifth Avenue and 42nd Street

         19  interchange, I walk through constantly, to in fact

         20  tell me where the sign is that says you can't turn

         21  right. It's a sign invisible to almost everybody

         22  from out of state. They just don't look for it, they

         23  don't expect it, and it's really hidden away in a

         24  plethora of other signs. You need the very clear

         25  signage in the City of New York for truck routes and
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          2  it has to be there and it's not there now.

          3                 Most drivers everywhere else really

          4  do look at the signs that say you can't drive here.

          5  That's what you find in Europe, that's what drivers

          6  expect in the rest of the country. We don't have

          7  that.

          8                 And by the way, one thing that I

          9  would ask you to consider again, one of the things

         10  that we try to do as all points is alert drivers to

         11  what are the hazardous points. You know, I go to

         12  Ireland quite frequently and in those places where

         13  there are risks, they put up a black spot. You know

         14  that when you see the black spot you're in an area

         15  where there is risk, from wherever it comes. We need

         16  to have black spots in the City of New York, because

         17  there are intersections where you have the conflicts

         18  of traffic. I can name them, you can as well in your

         19  own district, and a lot of drivers really don't

         20  understand how risky some intersections are. Just by

         21  the profile of the intersection, the location of the

         22  sidewalk, what have you, we need to do better jobs

         23  in that area.

         24                 We applaud the effort that you're

         25  making. We're just very concerned about the
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          2  legislation that's drafted, we certainly stand

          3  willing to work with you to make it better, to get

          4  more information out to the drivers, to make it

          5  easier for people to understand what the truck

          6  routes are, to understand what new truck routes will

          7  be needed. I have to point out to you that all of

          8  the studies we see say that absent the freight

          9  tunnel, we will have twice as many trucks in the

         10  City of New York in 20 years' time as we have now.

         11  If we don't have the truck routes to accommodate

         12  that traffic, they will be in your neighborhoods off

         13  the truck routes. Because they will have to move,

         14  because they are coming into the City for a purpose.

         15  They're carrying the things we all need and all the

         16  things we want as well.

         17                 Thank you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you, Mr.

         19  McArdle.

         20                 Mr. Maniscalco.

         21                 MR. MANISCALCO: Good morning, Mr.

         22  Chair, and members of the Committee. My name is John

         23  Maniscalco. I'm Executive Vice President of the New

         24  York Oil Heating Association, a 65-year-old service

         25  organization that represents home heating oil
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          2  distributors, New York City licensed oil burning

          3  equipment installers and other professionals

          4  associated with the oil heating industry.

          5                 I would first like to express our

          6  support for the spirit of Intro. 250. Drivers of

          7  large commercial vehicles should not violate the law

          8  by inappropriately and dangerously traveling down

          9  residential streets that are off limits to them.

         10                 Many of our members and their

         11  families live on these same streets and we applaud

         12  the Council's efforts to keep our children out of

         13  harm's way. This means making sure that trucks that

         14  are required following either local truck routes or

         15  through truck routes obey the laws of the road.

         16                 Our primary concern with Intro. 250

         17  is that it does not distinguish between trucks that

         18  are required by the State of New York to follow

         19  Local Law through truck route networks, and those

         20  that are not required to do so because of the nature

         21  of their business.

         22                 Home heating oil delivery trucks, for

         23  example, travel down residential streets to fill up

         24  residential oil tanks, keeping New Yorkers warm in

         25  the winter and providing them with domestic hot
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          2  water throughout the year. Requiring these truck

          3  owners to use truck routes would impede the ability

          4  of our companies to deliver home heating oil to New

          5  Yorkers. That is why on July 17th, 1992, the New

          6  York Legislature passed a law, quote, exempting fuel

          7  oil trucks from use of truck routes in cities,

          8  having a population in excess of 1 million, end

          9  quote.

         10                 The Assembly Bill 8565-A, Chapter 431

         11  of the laws of 1992 is attached to my written

         12  testimony.

         13                 Considering this State exemption from

         14  using trucks throughout would be inconsistent and

         15  unnecessary to require all home heating oil,

         16  delivery trucks to carry color coded maps of truck

         17  routes, home heating oil delivery truck drivers or

         18  owners should not be fined for enforcement and

         19  mechanisms designed for the vehicles.

         20                 Furthermore, our drivers already

         21  carry all the information that would be included in

         22  the truck routing sheet proposed in Intro. 250.

         23                 Our drivers carry Form FD 970, New

         24  York State's Uniformed Manifest for the Interstate

         25  Movement of Automotive Fuel. They carry delivery
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          2  tickets with delivery addresses and trip sheets

          3  which contain a log of delivery activity. All of

          4  these documents are readily available for Inspection

          5  to an enforcement agent.

          6                 We therefore ask that the Council

          7  amend Intro. 250 to exempt fuel oil trucks if this

          8  legislation is to move forward, so as to be

          9  consistent with the mandate of State Law.

         10                 Thank you for your time and your

         11  sincere consideration.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you,

         13  gentlemen, for joining us today. You have both made

         14  very good points that we certainly will take into

         15  account.

         16                 Obviously we realize that home

         17  heating oil trucks are necessary to make local

         18  deliveries. It is not our intent to restrict trucks

         19  from making necessary deliveries to homes or to

         20  local businesses or otherwise, and, so, we will make

         21  a stronger distinction between trucks simply passing

         22  through neighborhoods and trucks destined for

         23  deliveries within those neighborhoods.

         24                 And as far as the ability or the

         25  awareness of truck drivers about what streets in New

                                                            100

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  York City are permitted for use by trucks, the DOT

          3  and the NYPD testified earlier that they were

          4  confident that the truck drivers knew exactly where

          5  the truck routes were. Mr. McArdle, you are stating

          6  otherwise. We tend to give you more credibility in

          7  this regard, and so I think the idea of coupling

          8  modern day technology with Mapquest or something

          9  similar and putting the new truck routes whenever

         10  they are designated into computer code and

         11  accessible via the internet, that is something that

         12  we will explore as well.

         13                 Our intent is to -- you know, you

         14  look at the bill, which I'm proud to co-sponsor, to

         15  require truck drivers to carry color coded maps, I

         16  mean it sounds a little silly at the surface, but

         17  then you kind of look into why it is that you have

         18  to come up with some kind of imagination such as

         19  this, and it's because we've had so many

         20  difficulties within enforcement and issues with

         21  truck drivers not actually knowing where the truck

         22  routes are because the DOT has refused for so long

         23  to put up simple signs.

         24                 And, so, we understand that it is a

         25  difficult problem, and that we certainly look to

                                                            101

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  your expertise to help us craft better legislation

          3  that will better protect our residents.

          4                 MR. McARDLE: I mean, again, I hate to

          5  suggest that the City of New York in its regulations

          6  are opaque on occasion, but can you tell me the

          7  difference between local and through truck routes

          8  and how someone driving in from Pennsylvania will

          9  know what those words mean? Confidence of the Police

         10  Department notwithstanding?

         11                 I mean --

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Well, I think,

         13  again, those are distinctions that we would like to

         14  refine in whatever legislation we ultimately pass,

         15  as well as regulations that the DOT will promulgate.

         16                 However, in your example, I would

         17  doubt that it is a common instance for a truck to

         18  come straight from Pennsylvania to make a local

         19  delivery.

         20                 I realize that there are some trucks

         21  that come from out-of-state and make a series of

         22  deliveries, those drivers, whether they are from

         23  within New York State or other states, they should

         24  understand what the truck routes are, if they're

         25  simply passing through.
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          2                 I think what you're saying is that we

          3  need to make a stronger distinction between the

          4  truck that's making local deliveries and one that is

          5  not, but simply going through perhaps New York City

          6  onto Long Island or other destinations, and we

          7  certainly would ask if you have any, any suggestions

          8  on how we might refine that language in the coming

          9  months.

         10                 MR. McARDLE: I think one of the

         11  things you have to appreciate, and I'm sure you do,

         12  is that since the truck routes were last defined,

         13  1980, and slight modifications then, the wholesale

         14  distribution industry which services this area and

         15  Southern Connecticut, has moved further westward,

         16  and now you have a substantial amount of that

         17  warehousing and direct delivery industry located not

         18  in New York State but located in Pennsylvania, if

         19  you look at the major food distribution warehouses,

         20  they're not here, and perhaps one of the things that

         21  it would be important to do to have your staff do

         22  perhaps, if the time is not available for the

         23  Council members themselves, is to talk to the people

         24  that run these major distribution operations, Wake

         25  Fern or the others that you find in Elizabeth or
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          2  elsewhere, and find out exactly how they do educate

          3  their drivers, and what they do, because they're,

          4  again, making those local deliveries, trying to find

          5  ways to get to the locations where they have to drop

          6  stuff.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: That certainly is a

          8  fair suggestion. I would remind you, or mention to

          9  you, that we certainly have been in touch with some

         10  of these companies, and it has been partly our

         11  feeling that these companies don't always assume the

         12  responsibility that we think they need to, which is

         13  why we're not only putting the onus on the driver,

         14  him or herself, to know the truck routes, but we're

         15  also placing responsibility on these major trucking

         16  companies that are sending their trucks into New

         17  York City from out-of-state to make sure that the

         18  companies themselves are also accepting the

         19  responsibility for making sure that their drivers

         20  for sending into New York City understand where the

         21  truck routes are, and how these drivers need to

         22  conform with the truck route system within the City

         23  of New York.

         24                 And then if their drivers do deviate

         25  from the permitted routes, then the companies
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          2  themselves will face some consequences.

          3                 As of now those companies generally

          4  face no consequences.

          5                 MR. McARDLE: I don't disagree.

          6                 And one last point which you should

          7  appreciate; industries use trucks differently. The

          8  construction industry tends to in fact subcontract

          9  most of its trucking in the heavy industry at least.

         10  A lot of that does go to owner/drivers, people who

         11  own one or two trucks, but they are all dispatched

         12  by someone else. And, so, the legislation has to go

         13  to the person that's actually in command of the

         14  route, as well as to the owner. Because the owner

         15  may lease a truck to somebody, you know, it may

         16  appear that they're the owner. They're not really

         17  doing the direction of the truck every day, and

         18  you're not getting at the source of the problem that

         19  you're trying to solve. Again, it's just something

         20  to consider, and again, it's certainly in our

         21  industry, the impact you're going to have on a lot

         22  of owner/drivers who live in the City of New York, a

         23  lot of whom are aspiring entrepreneurs with their

         24  first truck or what have you, many of them coming

         25  today from communities of color. It's just something
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          2  to keep in mind, as to how you want to manage this

          3  problem. Because the problem is real and it's only

          4  going to get worse.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Sure. It's a fair

          6  point.

          7                 MR. McARDLE: Yes.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: We do have a

          9  question from Council Member Sears.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Thank you, Mr.

         11  Chair. It's good to see you again.

         12                 Just a brief comment before I ask my

         13  question.

         14                 Since most of what we use in the City

         15  of New York is by truck and comes over the George

         16  Washington Bridge, at least that's my understanding,

         17  the exits for that bridge come on to local streets,

         18  so they have the main thruways in which they get

         19  through, and the local streets have to come off the

         20  main thruway, they just have to. And most

         21  communities would have that main thruway and then

         22  you've got the side streets that come through the

         23  local streets. So, as I listen to you, it's an

         24  extremely complex issue, and what should the DOT be

         25  looking at in their study with their consultants
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          2  that apparently they don't have all that they should

          3  be looking at, or maybe extending it?

          4                 But there must be some critical

          5  things that they should be addressing, and that when

          6  that study is finished, we should be seeing that

          7  it's in it.

          8                 Because you've made points about how

          9  the trucks are used, the different industries in how

         10  they're used, the communities have expanded, there

         11  is no question about it. And they've expanded with

         12  new schools, renovation of the old schools. The

         13  communities, even though they haven't expanded

         14  geographically, they certainly have expanded in

         15  population. And the small merchant has expanded, and

         16  that small merchant is the one who utilizes a good

         17  many of these trucks.

         18                 I know at one time it had been

         19  proposed perhaps there should be hours for truck

         20  deliveries. In your professional opinion, does that

         21  make sense to you?

         22                 MR. McARDLE: I would hate to tell

         23  you, Councilperson, how many years I have been

         24  connected with the issue of after hours truck

         25  deliveries. But this is now the 30th year in which I
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          2  have discussed that issue ever since I worked in the

          3  City.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Well, I take

          5  that that you think that's a sane idea?

          6                 MR. McARDLE: Let us just say that it

          7  has kept a lot of people at work considering this

          8  idea for many years. And employment is always a

          9  useful thing.

         10                 The problem always with off-hour

         11  delivery has been the impact on the receiver, and

         12  many, many stores in fact went to 24 hour

         13  supermarket service, for example, because they were

         14  already taking deliveries at night, they had people

         15  in the store, why not just stay open 24 hours 'cause

         16  you were running the business for that many hours,

         17  and, yet, many businesses don't do that and you saw

         18  quite recently settlements of circumstances of which

         19  owners were locking people in and denying them any

         20  access.

         21                 To open a major store at night for

         22  delivery is a major enterprise, and I am sure you

         23  would hear from Federated or anyone about the cost

         24  implications of trying to manage off our delivery

         25  for some of the major recipients.
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          2                 But, again, we go back to the flow of

          3  traffic and what it means, and that is I hope what

          4  DOT is looking into. And you make an excellent

          5  point, and it's one that I'm sure, Councilman Liu

          6  appreciates, you can see it in your own district as

          7  well, and that is, you're a trucker, you're coming

          8  over the GW, and what you have in front of you is a

          9  major blockage on the Cross Bronx. This is not

         10  unknown, it does happen on occasion. And you --

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Every day, I

         12  would say.

         13                 MR. McARDLE: Most hours every day. My

         14  experience. And so you're stuck there, okay? And all

         15  you hear is major disaster after major disaster,

         16  that this thing is already, you know, backed all the

         17  way up from Co-Op City, and you're going to be

         18  stuck, and you have a product that has to get some

         19  place, and somebody is waiting for that product at

         20  the other end. I mean, that's the other side of

         21  this, truckers tend not to be moving randomly. So,

         22  you've really got to focus on what choices do people

         23  have and what are the alternatives you can direct

         24  them to?

         25                 And, again, it gets to the point you
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          2  make which is the intrusion of schools and

          3  residences into neighborhoods and on streets they

          4  were never on before, and I think of Broadway in

          5  some areas, and Manhattan, Upper Broadway

          6  particularly, where they found school sites at 207th

          7  Street, 204th Street, on Broadway, no one would ever

          8  have thought of putting a school on Broadway, except

          9  that was the only site you could find, and you have

         10  similar circumstances in your own district where

         11  sites have been found for nursing homes or schools.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS; northern

         13  Boulevard.

         14                 MR. McARDLE: That's what I was

         15  thinking of exactly.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Absolutely.

         17                 MR. McARDLE: Because they were sites

         18  that were a low-level industrial or commercial sites

         19  that suddenly people bought out.

         20                 Well, that changes the flow of

         21  traffic. We really again need to focus on, not just

         22  the truck route, you have to focus on the risk point

         23  on the truck route, and we need to invest in a lot

         24  of money.

         25                 Quite frankly, I'd feel a lot better
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          2  if the dollars out of those 8,000 summonses were

          3  going into a pool of money that worked on this

          4  issue, rather than simply going into the mar of the

          5  general fund, where there is no discernible benefit

          6  to the community, truck route education, or what

          7  have you, coming out of the summons activity. But

          8  I've taken more time than you've got, so I

          9  apologize.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Well, I thank

         11  you, because that certainly adds a dimension to it

         12  that we really need to address.

         13                 MR. MANISCALCO: If I may comment?

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Yes.

         15                 MR. MANISCALCO: It would be somewhat

         16  difficult for hours of delivery for my particular

         17  industry, because the nature of the business is at

         18  times emergency, and weather such as today, these

         19  companies work 24/7, that's problem number one.

         20                 Problem number two, because of the

         21  nature of the actual delivery, I don't think

         22  homeowners would appreciate from dusk til dawn

         23  footsteps in the driveway and hearing that whistle

         24  go off. So that's why it would be somewhat

         25  problematic for us.
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          2                 But what you had mentioned earlier

          3  when the police were up here, I think you hit it

          4  right on the head. I'm not sure where this

          5  consulting firm is from, but if they were to go to

          6  each Council member, say give me two, three, four

          7  problematic streets, plot that and start from there,

          8  I think that would get to the gist of it.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Thank you very

         10  much for that. Because I really believe that they

         11  erred very severely in not doing that.

         12                 I thank you.

         13                 Thank you, Mr. Chair.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you, Council

         15  Member Sears.

         16                 And gentlemen, thank you for joining

         17  us.

         18                 MR. McARDLE: You're welcome.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Our next panel will

         20  be Teresa Torro and Joanne Simone, and they will be

         21  followed by Matt Mihovich and Salvatore Stazzone.

         22                 Teresa, please proceed.

         23                 MS. TORO: Thank you, Chairman Liu.

         24                 I want to thank you very much for

         25  having your staff organize this public hearing.
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          2  Truck traffic affects us all, and I'm happy to

          3  comment on any bills that come before Council

          4  consideration.

          5                 Every New Yorker is frustrated by the

          6  growing amount of truck traffic in this City. Using

          7  truck tolls as a policy for volume, trucks in New

          8  York grew 12 to 15 percent just from 1999 to 2003.

          9  That puts us on track for an 80 plus percent

         10  increase from 1998 to 2020, or a greater than 50

         11  percent rise from now until 2020.

         12                 It's essential, as trade and

         13  production patterns shift and bring even more trucks

         14  onto our highways and streets that our government

         15  take proactive steps to protect New Yorkers from

         16  excessive truck impacts.

         17                 Truck traffic safety, health and

         18  quality of life impacts on New Yorkers are numerous

         19  and no one solution will provide the drastic reform

         20  that's needed.

         21                 We need to better manage our truck

         22  traffic and the campaign fully supports Intro. 250

         23  and Intro. 306 as important tools for controlling

         24  freight movement within our City limits.

         25                 Regarding Intro. 250, with up-to-date
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          2  detailed maps ready at hand, truck drivers can

          3  determine the most appropriate legal routes to take.

          4  This will help keep responsibility for lawful

          5  behavior where it belongs, with the drivers, who too

          6  often make routing decisions that are harmful and

          7  even fatal to New Yorkers.

          8                 What's more, we believe this measure

          9  will foster more of a partnership with the trucking

         10  industry, which will surely benefit from this

         11  legislation as well.

         12                 Regarding Intro. 306, which would

         13  increase the number of truck traffic and enforcement

         14  officers, this is absolutely critical information to

         15  close the enforcement loop.

         16                 We have really good truck laws on the

         17  books, but with our current level of dedicated truck

         18  enforcement officers, those laws frequently go

         19  unheeded and uninforced.

         20                 We see this bill as an important

         21  underpinning for Intro. 250. If both bills are

         22  passed, they will deliver a potent one/two punch

         23  sending a very clear message to truck drivers about

         24  sticking to legal truck routes.

         25                 I want to emphasize that measures to

                                                            114

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  protect communities from truck impacts are not

          3  anti-truck, or anti-business. We don't believe it's

          4  possible to be anti-truck. Trucks are a foundation

          5  of our economy and will continue to increase in the

          6  future no matter what any of us does.

          7                 Intro. 306 is about learning to live

          8  with all the additional trucks and establishing

          9  clear rules for doing so.

         10                 I'd also like to say that DOT's

         11  remarks today were not surprising but really

         12  unfortunate, and I really want to thank you,

         13  Chairman Liu, for emphasizing that in addition to

         14  doing outreach to the trucking industry and

         15  educating the NYPD Enforcement Division, we do need

         16  to educate communities about truck routes and

         17  different truck laws. That is something that's

         18  definitely been missing.

         19                 However, I would say that DOT needs

         20  to be very closely watchdog in its enforcement, in

         21  its enactment of outreach efforts, because as I've

         22  seen, when you give DOT money to do outreach, you

         23  get something like this, which I don't find very

         24  helpful. And I will be happy to give this to you. We

         25  need much better outreach than engraved pens.

                                                            115

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2                 And I also want to say, switching

          3  subjects entirely to the other issue for the

          4  Committee. Thank you for supporting the passing of

          5  Resolution 796. The Campaign has supported this as

          6  well. It's urgent that we work to modernize our

          7  transit system, but the particulars of which

          8  technology to implement should be debated separately

          9  from security and safety. Preparedness is an

         10  important enough topic to be debated on its own

         11  merits, and we think this is a step towards doing

         12  that.

         13                 It's our hope that Resolution 796

         14  will enforce the distinction between automation and

         15  modernization. Condemning the former while

         16  supporting the latter.

         17                 We believe that the Transit system

         18  must put the safety and security of its riders first

         19  and that must be through the visible presence of

         20  personnel on trains and on subway stations. And

         21  thank you very much. If you have any questions, I'd

         22  be happy to answer them.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you.

         24                 Ms. Simon.

         25                 MS. SIMON: Yes. My name is Joanne

                                                            116

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  Simon. I'm a Democratic District Leader in the 52nd

          3  Assembly District, and also the former Chair of the

          4  Gowanus stakeholder group. I'm also Chair of the

          5  Downtown Brooklyn Coalition, which is the

          6  neighborhood's ringing Downtown Brooklyn's

          7  commercial core. So, we get an awful lot of the

          8  truck traffic in and coming, Downtown Brooklyn as a

          9  destination, but also Downtown Brooklyn as a through

         10  route onto Manhattan. And I support both bills.

         11                 I certainly do understand that there

         12  may be some issues with regard to the methodology of

         13  how to implement these bills, and I don't take any

         14  position on them, as far as that goes.

         15                 But I do want to point out a couple

         16  of points in response to some of the other speakers,

         17  perhaps. And that is that this really is a

         18  multi-faceted issue, and a couple of weeks ago

         19  Councilman Yassky and Ms. Toro and I were on the

         20  corner of Atlantic Avenue and Smith Street watching

         21  the trucks go by, and one of the things that came up

         22  is a statistic that those of us involved with the

         23  Gowanus have been focusing on for a long time, and

         24  that is the number of trucks that come in and

         25  through Brooklyn, Staten Island and Brooklyn, on

                                                            117

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  their way to Manhattan and Queens that don't even

          3  need to be there at all.

          4                 So, we need to work on truck

          5  enforcement and keeping trucks on truck routes. We

          6  also need to make sure we don't invite in trucks,

          7  especially large trucks that we don't even need,

          8  into the City.

          9                 DOT, the State DOT, in 1999,

         10  determined that 17,000 more trucks were coming in,

         11  large trucks, not the smaller ones, the box trucks,

         12  but the much later 16- to 18-wheelers, were coming

         13  in over the Gowanus Expressway than were going out,

         14  and that is because we incentivized them coming in

         15  by a one-way toll on the Verranzano.

         16                 One of the big issues here, of

         17  course, is that is a federal issue because of the

         18  way it was implemented, but I think that if we start

         19  talking about this at the State level, at the City

         20  level, and at the federal level, there is no reason

         21  why we can't change that one-way toll to, for

         22  example, now that we have EZ-Pass, one-way tolls for

         23  the trucks only -- two-way tolls for trucks only so

         24  that the residents are Staten Island are not limited

         25  in any way from coming in, because that was the
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          2  incentive originally, but Staten Island has become a

          3  doormat for traffic. They've had to expand the

          4  Staten Island Expressway, because of this gratuitous

          5  truck traffic.

          6                 And that then comes in and comes up

          7  Brooklyn, because the traffic then is greater, that

          8  encourages more trucks to get off the highways,

          9  which are the designated truck routes, and to come

         10  up through our streets and go up over the Manhattan

         11  Bridge.

         12                 You see Canal Street has tremendous

         13  truck traffic that it doesn't need.

         14                 So, I encourage that we enforce,

         15  provide better enforcement mechanisms to keep trucks

         16  on the roadways providing better signage in any

         17  information about truck routes to truckers, it's

         18  very important. But I also encourage that we take a

         19  broader view of this and maybe start working

         20  together to figure out how we can minimize some of

         21  the truck traffic that we are going to be

         22  experiencing anyway.

         23                 Thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you. I think

         25  we're all pretty much in sync on our objectives and
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          2  how to get there.

          3                 And thanks for being patient with us

          4  this whole morning and so far this afternoon.

          5                 MS. TORO: Thank you very much.

          6                 MS. SIMON: Thank you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Our next panel will

          8  be Matt Mihovich, and Salvatore Stazzone. And

          9  following this panel will be Mr. X.

         10                 Mr. Mihovich, thank you very much for

         11  being patient with us. I know that you have a very

         12  busy schedule today, but I certainly appreciate the

         13  testimony that you --

         14                 MR. MIHOVICH: Well, I'm a truck

         15  driver and I have a truck waiting for me to go

         16  finish doing the routes.

         17                 I'll jump to the main thing that I

         18  really wanted to say today, and that was, once upon

         19  a time truck routes were created to corral trucks

         20  when going anywhere and everywhere. This is

         21  especially true for large trucks, which include

         22  traffic trailers, flatbeds and heavy trucks for

         23  construction. This is understandable, since several

         24  factors relating to large trucks may impede the

         25  driver from reacting in time to a sudden occurrence,
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          2  like a child rushing out from between parked cars.

          3                 Also, much depends on the quality of

          4  the driver of large trucks, many of whom come from

          5  out of state, from open-road states, and have

          6  difficulty dealing with tight lanes, with tight

          7  turns, as well as all of the stimuli that can

          8  distract them in a big City.

          9                 Unfortunately, into the same truck

         10  route restrictions, the City has thrown in all

         11  trucks, some of which are not much bigger than

         12  normal vans, accessorize vehicles for the

         13  handicapped, and certain over-sized SUVs.

         14                 Would you restrict them too? This is

         15  unfair. It is unfair to lump in with tractor

         16  trailers a truck like mine, and I have a picture

         17  accompanied to the thing. It's a 14 -- it's a gross

         18  weight of 14,000 pounds, and can fit into an

         19  ordinary metered parking space.

         20                 As such, I am here to propose a

         21  simple modification to current law that says any

         22  truck or commercial vehicle with a gross weight of

         23  less than 24,000 pounds and less than 33 feet in

         24  length is exempt from street truck route

         25  restrictions, except where weight or
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          2  through-restrictions currently exist. This exemption

          3  does not include parkways and/or no commercial

          4  vehicle postings.

          5                 My proposed modification is not

          6  written in stone. I am willing to work with members

          7  of the City Council and the Department of

          8  Transportation to come up with reasonable gross

          9  weight and length figures if the above seem too

         10  high. Or to test the exemption for a year or two and

         11  closely monitor whether or not safety concerns are

         12  satisfied.

         13                 There are two reasons to justify this

         14  modification. Number one: The NYPD Traffic Stat, and

         15  the New York State Department of Vehicle Statistics

         16  do not support what can now be termed small trucks.

         17  That's right, the statistics do not support small

         18  truck restrictions.

         19                 For example, for zip code 11215,

         20  which is the Park Slope, Brooklyn area, Traffic Stat

         21  shows only one fatality at the intersection of 9th

         22  Street and Fourth Avenue in Brooklyn, which are

         23  intersecting truck routes. But it does not say if

         24  the fatality involved any truck. For zip code 11213

         25  there was 16 fatalities, all of them along Eastern
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          2  Parkway, which is not, repeat, not a truck route,

          3  and all these fatalities have nothing to do with any

          4  trucks of any size. And for zip code 11209, which is

          5  Bay Ridge, there were five fatalities scattered

          6  around Bay Ridge, both on and off truck routes,

          7  which is to say here there was little or no

          8  correlation between trucks and fatalities.

          9                 New York State Department of Vehicle

         10  Accident Summaries go further. According to Table 1,

         11  all these tables are attached to my point, according

         12  to Table 1 large truck accidents, the number of

         13  fatalities involving pedestrians, bicyclists and

         14  others were 23 for the whole state for the whole

         15  year, out of a total of 135 fatalities, or 17.04

         16  percent.

         17                 Table 4P. Police investigating agency

         18  shows 29 fatalities for the NYPD, and as per Table

         19  5, jurisdictional road system, only 27 were on

         20  municipal streets. But since 27 is larger than 23,

         21  for the whole state, and does not distinguish

         22  between pedestrians and drivers, one must apply the

         23  17 percent fatality percentage to approximately

         24  distinguish pedestrians, bicyclists and others. The

         25  results is four. Just four fatalities for the entire
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          2  year in the entire City involving large trucks.

          3                 Compared to 352 fatal accidents in

          4  New York City for the same time period, trucks were

          5  involved in street fatalities of less than one

          6  percent. A street fatality record of less than one

          7  percent demonstrates that the neighborhood safety

          8  issue is a red herring.

          9                 For a truck route project conducted

         10  by the Department of Transportation in late 2003,

         11  Keith Kalb of the Department of Transportation said,

         12  such a study, "... was done in response to elected

         13  officials and community groups showing interest in

         14  truck issues and congestion in the City. Clearly it

         15  is a safety and quality of life issue for many New

         16  Yorkers."  The statistics, however, do not confirm

         17  safety concerns. Neither does Trip for that matter,

         18  in their 2003 New York City Regional Report Card.

         19  They gave a grade of V to Safety, and said, "Roadway

         20  safety features such as widened lanes, added or

         21  improved medians, improved intersection designs,

         22  paved shoulders, and added rumble strips can reduce

         23  traffic fatalities and serious accidents."

         24                 They said absolutely nothing about

         25  truck routes.
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          2                 Trip also gave a grade of D to

          3  congestion. And said "Thirty-nine percent of the

          4  streets are congested because they carry more

          5  vehicles." Has anyone stopped to consider how truck

          6  route restrictions contribute to that congestion?

          7  Because trucks can't take the shortest route to

          8  their destination? Might not exempting small trucks

          9  ease that congestion a little?

         10                 Further, with that exemption, might

         11  you be encouraging more truckers to downsize their

         12  28 to 40,000 pound trucks, which drivers have a hard

         13  time maneuvering and parking, wouldn't such a

         14  downsizing also ease congestion by improving traffic

         15  flow?

         16                 I think it would, which is why safety

         17  and congestion issues are red herrings.

         18                 They are meaningless, political

         19  rhetoric. My conclusion, small business persons like

         20  myself, whose businesses are in making deliveries,

         21  are being henned in on all sides by inflation,

         22  rising costs for insurance, rising costs for the MVT

         23  stickers, increased parking fees, for spaces that

         24  once were free from police harassment, because they

         25  don't ask you where you are going to determine if
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          2  you are adhering to the straight line off-truck

          3  route rule. They are just asking for license and

          4  registration, and justify their actions by saying,

          5  as one officer said to me, the company can afford

          6  it. I notice Councilwoman Reyna said this is the

          7  price of doing business. I would respectfully

          8  disagree.

          9                 No, ladies and gentlemen, little guys

         10  like me can't afford it. We need relief. And this is

         11  one small step in that direction.

         12                 The tragedy of 9/11 demonstrated

         13  something I'll bet most of you have forgotten. Mayor

         14  Giuliani on that day turned Manhattan into what it

         15  is, an Island, closing all the bridges and tunnels.

         16  Nothing came in, and within 24 hours, Manhattan

         17  offices, businesses and residences started running

         18  out of everything. Trucks now and then are the

         19  city's lifeline. Please don't take us for granted,

         20  as you seem want to do. Don't, as the cliche' goes,

         21  kill the patient in order to cure the disease.

         22                 Thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Well, thank you very

         24  much for your very thoughtful comments and your very

         25  comprehensive analysis. We'll take a look at it.
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          2  I'll say from the outset that I disagree with many

          3  of the statements you have made today. To say that

          4  four fatalities is not a real issue simply misses

          5  the point. I think that it's not just fatalities

          6  that we're talking about.

          7                 I wish there were no fatalities, but

          8  there's also injuries, there's also other traffic

          9  accidents, air and noise pollution, it is the

         10  break-up of road that are not meant for truck

         11  traffic, taking down those tree branches and power

         12  lines. And, so, to say that it's only four people

         13  dead is not really an argument for us to do nothing.

         14                 MR. MIHOVICH: No. What I was trying

         15  to demonstrate was a comparison to the number of

         16  people killed by normal cars, and by other form of

         17  other vehicles like motorcycles.

         18                 I mean, I don't see anyone

         19  restricting them or having thousand dollar fines for

         20  them. That's my point. That was my only point of

         21  comparison. Every life is precious. It is a

         22  legitimate form of comparison.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Okay.

         24                 MR. MIHOVICH: And I did leave my card

         25  with your assistant, because I am willing to work
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          2  with you in terms of this idea, you shouldn't put

          3  small trucks in the same category as big trucks.

          4  That's all I was trying to say really.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you for your

          6  patience, and we hope we didn't interfere too much

          7  with your business. Thank you.

          8                 Mr. X. You're our final panelist. We

          9  do need to clear the room shortly.

         10                 I also wanted to state for the record

         11  that we have written testimony submitted from Kim

         12  Hodge of the Transportation Alternatives, and also

         13  testimony submitted by Bill Joyce of the New York

         14  State Motor Trucking Association.

         15                 Please proceed.

         16                 MR. X: Hello, John. I'm speaking

         17  about Resolution No. 796-A, which is similar to 796.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: I apologize. Had I

         19  known you were talking about that, we would have had

         20  you much earlier. Sorry about that.

         21                 Please proceed.

         22                 MR. X: It doesn't matter.

         23                 Again, we're talking about the CBTC

         24  system which, from what I've been told so far, is a

         25  disaster waiting to happen. The first train to be
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          2  victimized will be the L Train, and if you don't

          3  already know, John, if you ride the L Train between

          4  Fulton Street, a/k/a Broadway Junction and Atlantic

          5  Avenue, it's pretty high above the ground. So, if

          6  you automate the train between those two points

          7  there, and something happens, that train falls off

          8  the elevated structure, off the tracks, you know,

          9  that's not just one lawsuit, that's numerous

         10  lawsuits, you know?

         11                 I encourage you, John, and all the

         12  Council members in your panel, to ride the L train

         13  between the two points and look all the way down,

         14  you'll see how high it is above the ground.

         15                 No, that's unacceptable. I don't know

         16  what's gotten into the MTA officials. Regarding this

         17  borough, they've cut elevated operator jobs in this

         18  borough, which you had a hearing about almost two

         19  years ago, they cut the jobs before they made the

         20  vote. They closed booths, they're looking to

         21  eliminate station agents, conductors. They're going

         22  to eliminate the drivers -- yeah, they're looking to

         23  eliminate the drivers, too, that's right.  I don't

         24  understand. You know, they can eliminate the people

         25  they need, or they just eliminate the people they
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          2  don't need. If they want to save money, they can

          3  take a pay cut. Since most of them don't do anything

          4  anyway, they could take a pay cut. Why are we asked

          5  to pay? Why can't they pay for a change? And as you

          6  already know, regarding the TA, regarding some of

          7  the MetroCard price, they went up just two days ago.

          8  That's unacceptable.

          9                 I don't feel the train should be

         10  automated. I think there should be a conductor and a

         11  motorman on every line, no matter how short or long

         12  the train is.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Well, Mr. X, we

         14  certainly agree with you in the case of certain

         15  types of trains that traverse certain kinds of

         16  pathways, and that will hopefully be taken up by the

         17  State Assembly soon.

         18                 MR. X: Okay. I'd like to get a report

         19  on that. Can you tell me which assembly is doing

         20  that? Or it's just the enter State Assembly?

         21                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: It's Assembly Bill

         22  30 --

         23                 MR. X: Which was signed by which

         24  Assemblyman? Was that Joe Lentol?

         25                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: It's Assembly Bill
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          2  3654.

          3                 MR. X: And was that signed by Joe

          4  Lentol?

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: It's still under

          6  consideration by the State Assembly.

          7                 MR. X: Oh, it's still under

          8  consideration, okay. I'm totally, as I said before,

          9  I'm totally against this. I'm surprised the MTA

         10  officials aren't here this time, because they were

         11  present on January 13, and it feels like they

         12  weren't because they weren't listening. I'm

         13  surprised they're not here this time. I don't see

         14  the basis for this. I'm sorry. I don't.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Don't need to be

         16  sorry. Thanks very much for the input.

         17                 There being no other witnesses today,

         18  this hearing of the Transportation Committee is now

         19  adjourned.

         20                 (Hearing concluded at 1:15 p.m.)
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